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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. Good morning, everyone.
MAYOR TAVARES: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now in
session. Today is April the 7, 2008. The time is 9:05. The Chair would
like to introduce the Members that are here this morning. We, we do have
bare quorum, Members, but we do have Member Baisa, Member Molina,
Member Hokama as well as Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good morning. Excused at this time are Members
Mateo, Anderson, Johnson and Medeiros. Members, up front we do have
the Administration personnel. We do have the Budget Director, Fred
Pablo; and we have the Mayor, Mayor Charmaine Tavares. Good
morning. And representing Corporation Counsel is First Deputy Traci
Fujita Villarosa. Supporting the Committee this morning are Lance
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Taguchi as well as Gayle Revels, Legislative Analysts; and Yvette
Bouthillier, our Committee Secretary.
Members, we do have several people signed up for public testimony this
morning. Let me give you the ground rules for people that are testifying
this morning. You do have three minutes to testify with one minute to
conclude, and if you can state your name and the organization that you are
representing we would appreciate that. But before we start, Members, and
members of the gallery, if you could turn off your cellphones and, and/or
put it on the silent mode. Thank you. The first person to testify this
morning is Dale Bonar. Dale?

... BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. BONAR: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, Members of the Budget
Committee. My name is Dale Bonar. I'm the Executive Director of the
Maui Coastal Land Trust, and I'm just here to briefly state our support for
the projects that are being proposed this morning for the Open Space
Fund. Four projects: two on Molokai and, and two on Maui here. The
two on Maui my organization, Maui Coastal Land Trust, has requested
funding to complete the acquisition. One of them is a fee acquisition at
Nuu; the other is an easement acquisition on taro lands at Keanae.
And I just wanted to give my enthusiastic support to all four of these
projects. They're all directly related to the public interest to protecting
open space. The major conservation values of the different projects varies
from shoreline access, to habitat protection, to endangered species. And
importantly all of them deal with cultural protections as well, of important
cultural elements in the islands here.
One point I wanted to make is that one of the great benefits of the Open
Space Fund is the ability to leverage other funds. And speaking for the
Land Trust, for example, for the Nuu property the $220,000 that's being
requested from the Open Space Fund finishes off for the purchase of the
Nuu Landing property which would be total purchase price of $4 million.
The rest of the funding has already been lined up. This would be the final
piece. So it's a tremendous leverage of our Open Space funds. Not only
that, but it's also a bargain sale, because the properties accessed has been
appraised, rather, at about five and a half million dollars.
Likewise, for the Keanae taro lands, which interestingly includes the
original little kalo patch, called Keanae, that the whole peninsula was
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ultimately named after, it would be matching funds for federal programs,
the Farm and Ranch Land Program, which is, is providing the, the other
half of the funding to purchase the easement to permanently protect it. So
I'd be happy to answer questions, but I thank you all for considering these
projects.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Bonar. Members, any question for the
testifier this morning? Seeing none, thank you very much for being here.
The next testifier is Stacy Helm Crivello. Good morning, Stacy.
MS. CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla and Council people. Thank
you for allowing me this, affording this opportunity for me to come before
you to, like Mr. Bonar, support the proposed budget to protect, and
preserve, and perpetuate our open space. On Molokai we have two
proposals and in addition to the support for Maui we'd like to encourage
that you would take into consideration the opportunity for us to acquire
Kawaikapu and as well as Morris Point.
I'm here on behalf of the Molokai Land Trust which is a non-profit entity
that was formed to be recognized by the IRS to legally acquire open space
and to protect the cultural benefits that just flourishes on our island. As a
pro-active approach, Kawaikapu is 196.40 acres that is more especially of
value for its watershed. We'd like to ask that you sincerely support us to
acquire that. We have been able to leverage some funding from our
Legacy Lands with the Hawaii State Department of Land and Natural
Resources and this would help us to commit the acquisition.
Furthermore, it will also allow us to continue the subsistence access that
we so value back home for those of the practitioners who wish to practice
with what we call gathering rights, and it's mauka, yeah. So I'm here to
answer any questions or concerns you may have. We appreciate the pro
active approach instead of reacting like the rest of the islands that what we
have available now we'd like the opportunity to malama and to preserve.
Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Stacy.
Ms. Helm? Member Baisa?

Members, any questions for

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much for being here this
morning. It's always nice to have folks from off-island come visit,
especially our friends from Molokai.
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MS. CRIVELLO: Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: This open space purchase that you want to make
for Kawaikapu with the money that you already have, if you get the half
that's in the budget now, the proposed budget, will that complete the
purchase?
MS. CRIVELLO: It, it will and it will be a fee simple purchase.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And be held by the Land Trust?
MS. CRIVELLO: By the Molokai Land Trust.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Can you describe the area just a little bit, what's
on it, and why you want it?
MS. CRIVELLO: First of all, it's, it's rich with, it's a watershed, and if I may I
can pass some visual pictures.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We'd love it, yes.
MS. CRIVELLO: But it also has rare plants as well as a perennial stream that has
been identified by the Aquatics Division of the Department of Land and
Natural Resources. If, if we do not get involved with managing that land,
the foliage and the richness of the watershed is slowly deteriorating, and
it's, it's, the east side of what we call Manai or on the east side of
Molokai, and it's just before the Kainalu properties. So Kawaikapu is just,
it's, it's really the old name for Kainalu which is, and the east side is
slowly, fast, I would say not slowly. In Molokai's eyes it's actually being
developed quite rapidly with the new homes that are being built there.
So in our interest and for the long-term this area is rich in the valleys and
goes about 2,000 something feet up into the mountains and which is one of
the few watersheds that have been actually identified by the State that is
still flourishing quite well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: The water that is in that area is it used to supply
potable water to east end or to Molokai?
MS. CRIVELLO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No.
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MS. CRIVELLO: The water comes out from the Ualapui tank, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well thank you very, very much and now I have a
visual of what it's about. Thank you.
MS. CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, Stacy, thanks -MS. CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --thanks again for being here. The next testifier that
signed up for testimony is former Councilperson Rick Medina. And good
morning, Member Johnson, thank you for coming.
MR. MEDINA: Good morning, Mr. Chairman. I'm Rick Medina, Wailuku
resident, and good morning to you, Mayor. I'm surprised to see her here.
Glad to see the Members of the Council also present and the Mayor's
staff. I didn't realize this was going to be a Mayor's budget. I was told to
come here to speak in favor of an item which appears, apparently, in the
Mayor's Budget. It's under 903098, MCC Long-Term Care Partnership.
The amount is $275.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Two hundred seventy five thousand.
MR. MEDINA: Two hundred ... that' s right. Now you know what it is - 275,000
down from 300,000. They reduced the, the amount. But I think that the
Maui Long Term Care will be able to live on that figure.
Back in June 25,2007, a news article appeared in The Honolulu Advertiser
stating that caregivers for our aging population is in short supply. It
includes nurses, caregivers, and people interested in working in this field.
Maui Long Term Care hopes to continue its work in encouraging more
individuals to go into nursing and also to be certified nurse's aides to
assist the aging and even those who are not 65 and over. As we
understand it, some people, or 40 percent of the people under 65 do go
into nursing homes. So it's not all people who are 65 and over.
I'm going to cut this thing a little short. The mission, let me jump to that
portion of my testimony. The mission of the Maui Long Term Care
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Partnership is to establish and sustain a comprehensive coordinated home
and community based model of services for all that will foster quality of
life and death with dignity. So I sincerely ask that you approve the
budgeted amount on page 11-10 of this 2009 Fiscal Year Budget. You
also might assign a Council Member to oversee the work being done
similar to assigning certain Members of the Council to oversee the work
and plans ofMaui Economic Opportunity.
In order to save government millions of dollars we hope to encourage,
continue to train caregivers in caring for their family members at home.
We understand that the reason a new hospital was turned down recently
was because we don't have enough nurses to staff the hospital. And of
course if we did open another hospital it would stretch the nursing core to
the point where both hospitals could suffer. So I think it's in the interest
of our community to encourage more and more of our youngsters to get
into nursing, and I hope that you'll support this item of $275,000. Thank
you very much for this opportunity.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Thank you. Members, any questions for
the testifier at this time?
MAYOR TAV ARES: The amount went up from last year.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
MAYOR TAVARES: Not down.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah. It didn't go down.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any questions for Mr. Medina? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just a clarifying thing. Actually the amount last
year was 250,000 and in this budget it's 275,000.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
place.

Just to clarify so we know we're in the right

MR. MEDINA: Correct.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa.
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MR. MEDINA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for Mr. Medina? Seeing
none, thank you very much.
MR. MEDINA: Can I testify in opposition to the golf course raising in fees?
CHAIRPONTANILLA: No.
MR. MEDINA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not, not today. We'll take up rates and fees at
time. Members, Mr. Medina was the last person to sign up for
testimony. Is there anyone out there that would like to provide
testimony at this time? Seeing none, the Chair, with no objections,
like to close public testimony.

a later
public
public
would

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'd just like to call on Stacy Crivello. If
you could pass out that information that you had so that the Members can
take a look at what you were talking about as far as trying to save that
watershed. Thank you. You can pass it on to the Members so that they
can take a look at the watershed. Thank you .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2009 BUDGET (c.e. Nos. 08-55 and 08-56)

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, again, this morning we do have the Office of
the Mayor review. And at this time, I would like to call on Mr. Pablo to
provide us with some comments.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla, and good morning, Members. Today
we have three offices to cover, so I know you have a pretty tight day, and I
realize that you'll be going to Hana this evening. Let me give you a brief
overview on the Office of the Mayor. There will be four items which we
will be covering. The first item would be the Operations; second will be
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Grant Revenue; then we'll be going to the Capital Improvement Project;
and then also the Open Space Revenue Fund.
With regard to the Office of the Mayor and the Operations, you should
have a three page handout right in front of you. And as you can see the
major thing which you'll notice is it's a very flat budget. The change over
when you compare Fiscal Year 2009 with Fiscal Year 2008, the net
change is 2.9 percent. And you can see the Administration Program is at
19 and the Economic Development Program is at a minus .2 percent.
I'd like to also comment that there was another program in the, excuse me,
in the prior budget, the Maui Redevelopment Agency and that office has
been moved to the Planning Department which we'll be covering
tomorrow during the budget deliberations. There's also another segment
of the Office of the Mayor and that's the Community Development Block
Grant which this Committee covered on March lOth, just last month.
If you go to the second page you'll see that, here's the analysis of the
Administration Program. And again you'll notice immediately that it's a
flat budget. Salaries have gone up. Operations is basically one item for
254,000, which the Mayor will cover after I finish my presentation. And
there's an equipment purchases or requests is similar to last year at 73,500.
Then we go into the other program which is the Office of Economic
Development. And here again just by looking at the summary you can see
that salaries have gone up for the increase, but operations and both
equipment have gone down as you compare the Fiscal Year '09 to the
Fiscal Year '08 request. When you look at the Operations line please note
that out of this 10.3 million, roughly 10 million of this are grant items,
which will be covered on Friday of this week. And equipment is a very
small amount being requested for, for computer equipment of$l,OOO.
With that as a brief opening presentation, the Mayor is available to answer
any of your questions. We also have the Mayor's staff here should there
be any specific questions on programs. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Budget Director Pablo. Members, if you
can turn to page six and seven of the proposed bill, and on the Program
Budget 13-1 to 13-12, and on the Budget Details 11-1 to 11-29. Before I
call on the Members for Q and A, Mayor, you have any comments to add
at this time?
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MAYOR T AV ARES : Yes, I, I would just like to thank you all for going through
this process. I don't envy you very much. I just wanted to make a point
about the budget overall is that we asked the departments to really take a
hard look at what they were going to propose in the budget this year
knowing that there were going to be some tough economic times coming
in. We already had quite a few things that we had no control over that we
have to satisfy such as the collective bargaining agreements and how that
impacted our overall County Budget.
When we looked at the grant area, for example, we just heard a testifier,
Mr. Medina, talking about the Long-Term Care Partnership ... partnership
with MCC to provide for caregivers. And we felt that this was a program
that was very important and critical to our community, so we actually
increased their budget as requested. And this is not true of all of the, all of
the grants. Most of the grants either stayed flat, some might have gone
down a little, but you'll notice when you go through it on Friday how the
grants come out. But we were trying to look at, focusing on those areas
that were, we thought were the critical needs for our community at this
time. So with, with that I'm open to, to questions or clarification on
anything you might be interested in, in this area.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mayor. Member Baisa, just for clarification
in regards to -COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Questions on what?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --you, you raised your hand.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, before we ask questions on the Administration
Program do you have a question to clarify an item that the Mayor had
spoken about?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just, yes, I did want to talk with the Mayor about
the Long-Term Care Partnership. I think that is a very wise thing. I think
many of us might have read The Maui News this morning and saw the
article where they're saying that we're not paying much attention to aging
as a County. And I think that's really sad because it's not true. This is a
fine example of how the County has tried to help with aging by supporting
the Maui Long-Term Care Partnership, and working with the Office on
Aging, and all of the partners that we have here in the County. We are
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concerned about our seniors, and so, Mayor, with this 275,000 what is the
increase for?
MAYOR T AV ARES: Just to, because the program is having increased expenses
also and with that perhaps they can take on a few more students into the
program to train more people, because it's been very successful. And I
think there are people waiting, just like we saw with the nursing program
there are people waiting on a wait list to get into the program. So we
thought this little boost would, would help them get more, more people
trained and certified.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think that's a good use of money. You know, all
of us are not getting any younger every day and the numbers are
staggering. And so, you know, we have to do everything we can to help,
you know, create the help that we're all going to need. And so I am very
supportive of the increase for them, and I think it's modest. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Okay. Members, if we can
go to the Administration Program and we'll start from there. Program
page 13-3 and the Details page 15-2. We'll start off with Member
Victorino if you do have any questions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I noticed that we have a, you know,
like you mentioned, Mayor, a fairly flat budget overall. The question I
had for you and pardon me if I, I asked this question, and I guess it, it kind
of, in my mind, got, got a little bit, I guess just a little, little question in my
mind, okay, and please pardon me, I'm not trying to tell you how to run
your office now please. But do you need 13 Executive Assistants? I mean
I just thought that was kind of a lot, but I don't know, you tell me. And I
guess people would like to know that also if you don't mind please?
MAYOR T AV ARES : Yeah, well I have the Executive Assistants set up on a, on
a different approach than perhaps has been done in the past. You know,
I'd be happy to share with you what each Assistant's areas of
responsibility are, but basically what we've done is we've assigned each
Executive Assistant to one or more departments so that they become the
liaison person or persons between the Administration, and the public, and
the department. We are extremely busy, and I kind of marvel at the things
that we're charged with each day.
I think the Assistants are very important to us not, not just for, you know,
if we had Assistants that only were responsible for County jurisdictional
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issues we probably could do with less. But our community doesn't make a
differentiation between State, Federal and County jurisdiction. And so,
for example, we have a part-time Executive Assistant that handles the
health and health care issues for Maui County even though that's not our
kuleana. We also have our Environmental Coordinator who is working
very, very hard doing numbers of things that are really State types of
jurisdictional areas. But if we don't push some of the programs or get
involved in the programs, you know, all we're doing is pointing the finger
and saying, oh, it's not us, it's them. You know, don't ask us about those
things.
Yes, there, there is a number of people, but I think our, our County has
gotten to the level of complexity that we need to have better service to our
community and these Executive Assistants do a heck of a lot to try to
bridge those gaps between government and the community members. So
that's why I feel that each one of them has critical roles to play, not just
helping the departments, but especially helping the community.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, Chair, I mean, Madam Mayor, I agree
with you 100 percent. Whenever there's a situation out there whether it's
State or Federal it's still our community. And having somebody be able
to, for lack of a better term, dog the project or, or keep tabs of the situation
I think it's excellent, it's long, maybe long overdue. You know, and I
think, you know, I think you've taken a step in the right direction. And I
think the public needs to hear that because sometimes you see things on
paper, but they have no explanation.
I will ask the Chair, you know, if it's all right we ask the Mayor for a
request in writing the various responsibilities of the EAs, because I think
it's something important we all understand what they're doing. I think
they do a fine job. I'm not questioning anybody's job and what they're
doing here for this County, but, you know, when you see this on paper
people start to say, oh, why, and if we can explain why and understand
that it is making government more efficient I think it's a win-win
situation.
The other question I had, are we just doing the, the Administration; right?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Okay.
I guess the area of this
Miscellaneous, and I, and I, and I think it's, yeah, Miscellaneous Other
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Costs, 2007 was 34,500, 2008 you asked for 14, and then this year it
jumps to 62, 62,000. And I'm always curious when something jumps out
at me that's a tremendous increase what the rationale, and then it says, you
know, again Miscellaneous and Other Costs. I have no idea what
Miscellaneous Other Costs would be. So is there, is there some kind, is
that rent, or is, what is that 62,000 for, if I may ask?
MAYOR T AV ARES: Yeah, well, you might notice that the two lines below it
are minus 100 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MAYOR T AV ARES: What we were attempting to do in these operational
budgets is to group things together so that we don't have as many lines
and sub-object codes in the, in the Budget Details. So we, so some of
those are groups. So if you look at, you know, that whole list there, you'll
see that one changed, you know, 5,900 percent because it went from $300
to $18,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MAYOR TAV ARES: But that's grouping a whole bunch of things together in
that same communication category rather than having six maybe object
codes to describe it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, like in that one you might have,
you know, like publication, registration, rental, building, rent, all the
different things you kind of grouping that together; is that what you're
doing?
MAYOR TAV ARES: In, yeah, in Miscellaneous.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. In Miscellaneous. Okay. Okay.
Just so long as I'm clear on what that means. I appreciate that. Thank
you, Madam Mayor.
MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. I'll yield to others.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Before I go to Mr. Hokama I just got one
fast question on this reimburse, reimbursement to Manae [sic] property of

- 13 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 7, 2008

$254,000. I, I know we had granted the purchase of that property through
CDBG Funds.
MAYOR TAV ARES: And that's, that's the bulk of the increase in operations for
the Mayor's office. This is the property that was the Hale Pomaikai
project that went through CDBG some years ago, and it has turned out that
they're not able to fulfill their obligations as far as meeting the HUD
requirements to have a project started within five years or so. So they
have notified us that they are not going to participate anymore.
So under the HUD guidelines and rules, and the, the, I thought we were
going to have to purchase the property and reimburse HUD, but the latest,
and this, like, it changes almost daily sometimes, the latest is that we may
be able to just have control of the property and that we would then be able
to not have to use this money to purchase. But this property has been, is
very sensitive, this nine-acre property has a lot of cultural sites on it and
this is primarily what stopped the other program.
We need, I think, before we go forward with deciding what to do with this,
and I know there's been talk about, you know, maybe it was a fire station
site for that side and, and that's kind of been done away with. Perhaps a
cultural center of some type on Molokai. There are other options out
there, but I think at this stage of the game if we could retain the amount of
money in the operations, then we could do the proper cultural assessment
and archaeological studies so that we can more clearly define or explore
what our options might be for this piece of property. So that's, that's why
that money is in there.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Can, can we purchase this property through
the Open Space Fund and just keep it as such, open space with, you know,
preserving the, the cultural and burial sites that exists?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah, actually we don't, we're not having to purchase it.
So there is no fund, I mean we don't have to purchase it and use Open
Space Fund. What we have to do is put the money, have some money
available to do the, to do the assessment of the property. There's no
purchase necessary at this point. It's just going to transfer to the County.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: So is there, like, a reimbursement to HUD in this case
here?
MAYOR TAVARES: No, there isn't.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for those questions, Chairman. Mayor,
just so we can appreciate, I heard your response earlier about the number
of your Assistants in your office ... (end of tape, side IA) ... integrity of
how you plan to administer the Executive Branch. We notice in
Department of Management you still, you have vacancies there. So is it, is
it your approach to deal more through your Executive Assistants and the
Office of the Mayor than to go to the Department of Management for
specific administrative, I guess procedures or standards that the
departments are to work through?
MAYOR T AV ARES : No, the Department of Management has their, their own
programs that they have to deliver services through, and I think when the
Managing Director comes up you may ask those questions about, about
those vacancies. But the Executive Assistants are not taking the place of
any other employee particularly any civil service types of employees. It's,
it's mainly to, to help us to relate better, get better information out to our
community, and to assist the departments as well as our Administration,
bridge some of those huge gaps. And I think we've all seen in the past
that when something comes up, and we don't have people to address it that
things just get blown out of proportion, and our, our, the easiest thing is to
say, you know, well, that's not our jurisdiction.
So when something happens with, you know, maybe a demonstration with
the Superferry, for example, that's really not our jurisdiction, but we have
to be involved with it because it involves our community. So, you know,
we've had a number of those things in recent times that it's, I think it's
better for us as a County to demonstrate that we are, are there to help our
community either adjust or get information, proper information out to
them so that they can make wise decisions about their own behaviors. So
it's not really to take any place of a position or responsibility out of the
Department of Management, which was I think your original question.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The other one is you, you're reducing your
request to us for fees or dues that you may have wanted to continue
regarding the professional associations. Is there -MAYOR TAVARES: Yes, I reduced ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --is there something happening?
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MAYOR TAVARES: Yeah, I reduced the amount for the Conference of Mayor's
membership. The membership as you see is quite expensive, that $11,500,
and we kind of did the math on it a little bit, that if I go to the conference
which I plan to go it's much less expensive to go as a non-member of the
Conference of Mayor's. And, you know, I still would like to go to those
conferences, but it doesn't cost $11,500 or the benefit of being a member
versus non-member is not that great. So I might pay a couple hundred
dollars extra in registration as a non-member, but I still have access to all
of the, all of the meetings, or most of the meetings. And I do belong to
the, the Women's Mayor's Group out of that Conference of Mayor's
which has no fee. We just like to get together and talk story.
(chuckles) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, the Administration is a part of the County's
membership of, of NACo?
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, and we participate that annually actively, so I
just was curious, because I support the Administration's efforts to
participate in this type of, of venues for us to exchange information.
MAYOR TAVARES : Yeah, and if it should turn out, like, I've only been to one
conference in the U.S. Conference of Mayors, so I kind of went to check it
out, so to speak, and see what advantages I might be able to gain as a paid
member versus a non-paid member, and there's not that much difference
between those scenarios. If I wanted to become an active member in one
of their steering committees, such as you're doing with NACo, that would
be a different story. Then I'd have to be a paid member or our County
would have to be a paid member. But I don't see that I, first of all, I
cannot devote that kind of time to what those steering committees are
working on and I've gotten to know the people that are on those
committees, and they share information quite freely as to what happens in
all of those committees and subcommittee meetings. So I believe the
County can still take advantage of what comes out of those conferences
by, even though we're not a paid, dues paying member.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Mayor.
MAYOR TAVARES: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: If you could further expand on the Executive
Assistants, the, in terms of scope of responsibilities. I, I note the EA I's
are at 64,000; the EA II's are at 75 or several of them. Can you just
comment on how much more, I guess, responsibilities the EA II's have?
MAYOR TAV ARES : Yeah, the EA II's are, are more the, the senior members
where they have a specialty that I was looking for such as in housing and
in, in law. So I have an EA that's, that's now an attorney and that's to
help us help you too. But they're the ones who have that specialty area.
And because of their experience in either the private sector or in
government, to attract them to come in to work for our Administration,
we've made these two different classes. You'll find that the EA I's
primarily are the generalists, that they have a broad experience, and
they're the ones who may cover two or three departments, as well as
community associations and things like that, but they don't have a
specialty per se.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, and I wanted to ask that so
the public understands the difference between why some EAs get paid
more than others. Some of them have the professional background in a
certain specialty.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And finally on the furniture itself for the ninth
floor, this is just replacing chairs and tables in the various offices or does
this include the Mayor's conference room as well?
MAYOR TAV ARES: We already did the Mayor's conference room this year.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MAYOR TAVARES: And we've changed it from the Mayor's lounge to the
Mayor's conference room because now it really looks like a conference
room. So that furniture was purchased with this year's money. And we're
continuing on the other side, because as you might know Corporation
Counsel is moving down in totality to the third floor, and we'll be taking
over that area. So I can bring all the staff that's scattered about into the
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same floor. It would be very nice to have all the staff members in one
place. But that's the, the way it's being configured we will have to replace
some of the clunkier desks and things to make it more streamlined so we
can utilize space better. So we've opted to go with changing the furniture
out also.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mayor, thanks very much for the
information today. On the, you know, because I, I guess most of the other
departments they just show an EP count and the way things are trending, is
there any reason why we don't show an EP count? Why we show zero?
MAYOR TAVARES: I think that's a, a long-standing agreement where the
Council, the Legislative Branch and the Administrative Branch are not
tied to EP counts as the rest of the County departments are.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and, and the only reason I, you
know, like when, if anybody else looks at the budget detail they're going
to see zero employees and perhaps that's because those positions are not
secure.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes, it is. They're appointed positions just as the one's are
on this floor.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I, I just added up the totals and not
counting yourself I guess there's 51 people. So over the years have you
been finding that, you know, we, we do need to I guess have additional
personnel just to simply function as you mentioned earlier. Is it, is it the
trend seems to be going slightly up?
MAYOR T AV ARES: It is going slightly up and, you know, as our County grows
we have to keep up with that growth or our services suffer and
communication being one of the greater services, I think, and we're kind
of responsible for that area in the Administration. So it's, it's, we haven't
grown, you know, in the past to keep up with what our growth was in the,
in the community, and so we're still kind of in a catch-up mode, and
you're seeing that through, not particularly this year, but in recent years
past requests for additional personnel in the departments so they could
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keep up with the increased workloads and responsibilities of the
departments.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and I really appreciate that. The,
the other question I have is in regard, I guess, to the change overall. When
you look at the increase I guess in the salaries and wages is a lot of that
due to both the Salary Commissions increase overall for some of the wage
categories, or is it due to pension, or addition of more people? You know,
do we have any idea or do you have any idea how that's kind of broken
out?
MAYOR TAVARES: As far as the Mayor's office goes, the Salary Commission
only deals with my salary.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay.
MAYOR TAV ARES: And the other employees which we try to tie them into
what the civil service employees equivalent persons are making just as
you do with Council Services staff. So we try to keep it on parity if not
we wouldn't be able to get, you know, people to work for us. So we try to
keep it at least even and knowing that this is a short term period, I mean
it's a finite period, it's not forever, and you could be replaced at any time,
so trying to offset that with, with some of the salary adjustments also.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But, but we don't have, or you don't have, at
this time, just kind of a break out knowing that, okay, you've added in so
much for salary or wage increases just because of, you know, the necessity
to do that, and then what amount would be, like, the under funding for our
pension programs, for example, and then were there any new people added
in, you know, that might have added to that total. Because I think
administration program overall is 19.9 percent, 19.9 percent increase. So,
and I guess in salaries and wages it's only 8.8 percent though. So that's,
that's about, I guess, equivalent to what everybody else would be getting
just with the pension and benefits.
MAYOR T AV ARES: Well, I think that the pension and benefits part of the
package is done on a Countywide basis. So the formulas are, are figured
out, or they're still try to figure out some of them, but the formulas for
what we contribute now is figured out through the Finance Department
and with the input from Personnel Department. So we don't have a
separate fund that we put just appointed people's salaries or contributions
into. It's all one, one fund figured out by the Finance Department, and
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then everyone, you know, basically that's those Countywide costs that
Kalbert went through when he was here. So that that's all in the package.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. Mayor, just one quick
question. I think most of it's been looked at already, but on page 11-4 of
the Budget Details under services there's Professional Services, the
account is 6132. Can you just give us an idea of what that budget, budget
item is for? It's for $70,000 request this year.
MAYOR T AV ARES: Professional Services are things where we hire contractors
to do different things, and we looked at what we might be spending next
year, and it's not as much as this year. This year we hired the persons, the
firm to do the renovation or the design for the renovation. We're not
going to do that next year. So we can reduce our amount of professional
services as, as one example. So we try to be a little frugal and reduce
where we, we could reduce.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, it certainly doesn't look like a fat budget to
me which has been the theme so far. So, again, thank you very much.
MAYOR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Before I call on Member Molina I got a
fast question on 11-3, where it says increase to half-time, footnote number
three. I'm assuming it's, like half-time now, and you're going to make it
full-time?
MAYOR T AV ARES: Just hold on a second. You know, let me come back to
you a little later on that, because I need to identify the person, in order to
figure that out for you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you, Mayor. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mayor Tavares, just
one quick question on the issue of office space, and I know, I know, I
don't know if you have your proverbial crystal ball with you, but then as
we all know, with what the County's getting charged for office space is
just, you know, I don't know what word to use, but it's really horrible.
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And dare I say these three words. Any One Main Plaza types of buildings
that you're looking at this point? I know you're, you're in the process of
doing a study to look at other areas for office space. Any considerations
for expanding other County facilities to meet this demand for more space
as this County Government grows?
MAYOR T AV ARES : Yes. The preliminary information coming from the study
is that we probably need to double the size of this building. I mean we
need space that would be equivalent to not necessarily double the size of
this building, but we need that kind of space. So when that study is
completed, then we'll be looking at all of our options out there and
looking first to where we have County land. And I think we had part of
this discussion last year about looking at the Kaohu Street property there,
the property where the post office is and some other already County
owned properties to look at how we want to set this up. There are some
other options out there that we're also looking into and, and maybe
pursumg, but we would really like to wait until we get the definitive
report.
You know, going back to that growth period, I mean this building was
built in, what, 1973, and I, we, we don't want to guess what the capacity,
how many employees we had in 1973 as compared to now, but we just
haven't been able to keep up. And, you know, in 1973 they really planned
this building for considerable growth, I have to admit that. The people
who were on the Council and the Mayor at that time really did look to the
future, and so it took us, you know, a good 30, 30 years to get to a point
where we needed to look very seriously elsewhere at a building equivalent
to this size.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions in regards to
the Administration Program? If not, we'll go to the next program which is
Economic Development Program.
And, Members, like the Mayor
indicated under operations, the amount that you see basically is the, the
grants by OED which we'll cover on Friday. So, Members, just to be
aware of that, that Friday we'll review the grants. Okay, OED.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes, could I ask our coordinator Deidre Tegarden to join
us here? And if you don't mind, Chair, I'll let her do the presentation for
OED.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
MS. TEGARDEN: Good morning.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good morning.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you, Mayor. Thank you, Committee Chair Pontanilla
and Committee Members. Once again thank you for the opportunity to be
here this morning to give an overview of the Office of Economic
Development's Fiscal Year '09 Budget request. It has been a busy week
filled with one emergency after another, in particular the bankruptcy of the
two airlines, stranded passengers, and Mayor's quick call to action with
job fairs, just to mention a few diversions. And I will address those
shortly, and its possible effects.
But first off I, I did want to call your attention to the bottom line of the
Fiscal Year '09 Budget, which is we have reduced our proposed budget by
$21,000 from last year. Furthermore, we have made these reductions
without negatively impacting any of our services to the community. So
with a lot of hours, effort, and cooperation, we not only managed to
decrease our overall budget, but we were also able to support some new
projects.
With the recent economic emergencies that hit us, the closing of Molokai
Ranch, Aloha Airlines, AT A Airlines resulting in job losses for hundreds
of Maui County residents not to mention an estimated 10,000 stranded
visitors. But in spite of all these happenings we expect that our proposed
budget will stand strong. And I wanted to touch on the bankruptcies and
closings, because I feel that now more than ever this office has a greater
responsibility and our partnerships and your support are increasingly
important to the economic well being of our County. So with all this in
mind as to where we are going let me go back to the basics and our
overvIew.
As you know, the job of the Office of Economic Development is to
promote and nurture sustainable economic development within Maui
County consistent with the communities' needs and priorities. OED
works in partnership with the community, business, non-profit, and
government sectors to strengthen and diversify the economy by supporting
existing businesses and by assisting in the attraction, development,
expansion of new businesses. We do this through the following programs
under our office: workforce development, agriculture, our film office,
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renewable energy programs, cultural initiatives, small business enterprise
including our Maui County Business Resource Center and our Molokai
Kuhao Business Center.
And under the Office of Economic Development and within these
programs we set goals and objectives that continue to be for Fiscal Year
'09, assisting in the attraction, development, and expansion of new and
developing industries, through partnerships with our community, and other
agencies; support work force development efforts to provide a competitive
workforce in Maui County; maintain a well rounded community in terms
of recreational, cultural, educational and health care opportunities;
develop, maintain local, regional, national, and international alliances to
advance Maui County's economic development strategy; foster and
sustain long-term economic growth for the County ofMaui; and showcase
the island's competitive advantage to promote Maui County as a
community where people may live, learn, work, and play.
Our office has a projected potential grant revenue stream of $8 million this
coming year. The primary increase is over $4 million in renewable energy
grants that do not require matching funding from the County. Maui
County is at risk to supply scarcity and price volatility of fossil fuels. It is
common knowledge that our islands are known for being 90 percent
dependent on expensive imported crude oil and the future energy of Maui
County depends on the timely development of various sources of
alternative energy tied together by an adequate combination of energy
storage methods and reliable delivery systems that can take advantage of
the more than sufficient energy potential entrenched in our solar, wind,
ocean, and biomass resources.
As such, Maui County seeks to facilitate the development of various
sources of renewable energy. To address this need the Office of
Economic Development seeks to identify and pursue direct funding and
technical assistance grants. Among them are grants from the U.S.
Department of Energy, USDA, U.S. Department of Commerce, and the
State. Projects range from biofuel crop development, energy storage
systems, plug-in hybrid vehicles to green technology. And the grant
amounts range from $200,000 up to $2 million.
Other grant revenue that is new for Fiscal Year '09 is an $800,000 drought
mitigation grant for improvements to the Kula Ag Park through the State
of Hawaii Hazard Mitigation Fund and $150,000 from Preserve America.
As you know, Maui County was awarded the Preserve America
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community status and with this designation comes the opportunity to
apply for up to $150,000 in Federal funding for a project to support
community efforts to demonstrate sustainable uses of our historic and
cultural sites, and the economic and educational opportunities that we
offer. We are also seeking additional funding up to $500,000 that we will
be applying from, through HTA. We expect to work in partnership with
MVB, the Parks, Police, and perhaps others on improving security systems
in selected parks.
There are always surprises and events unplanned for such as the recent job
losses stated earlier. Our Work Force Development Program has been
working tirelessly with other organizations to help Maui County residents
with the recent job losses. We are working on a job fair for this Saturday
April 12th, at Queen Kaahumanu Center with over 70 employers with
immediate job openings as well as a job and service fair on Molokai April
19th, with over 30 employers with immediate openings at the fair. We
also participated in a job fair last week specifically for Aloha Airlines and
ATA employees. I just want to say thank you, and I'm sure we all agree
that we appreciate your time, and I look forward to answering any
questions or clarifying anything you might have. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Tegarden. Members, if you can turn to
page 13-5 of your Program Budget, and 11-7 on your Details. Members,
questions? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Yes, thank you.
And thank you,
Ms. Tegarden, first of all, and the Mayor, and the administrations for their
rapid response. As you well know, I sent you a letter requesting for
assistance in more of a financial nature, but I think when the sum total of
all is put together, the people of Maui County are being well served by
what you bring forth. And I want to thank you very much on behalf of the
people because these downturns, these economic sudden changes are
devastating for many people, many people in our community, family, and
friends. And I was told by people who have attended they are very
pleased in what you are doing and please keep up the good work.
I do have a question on the area of the redevelopment, because I noticed
that that has been taken completely out, and you had mentioned it earlier,
the Wailuku Redevelopment Agency, yeah, that you're putting it under
Planning now. What was your thought process to do that change from
Economic Development and now back into Planning?
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MAYOR T AV ARES: .., (coughs). .. Excuse me, the Maui Redevelopment
Agency has sort of been almost like a stepchild to the County of Maui and
been placed in different areas through, throughout the years. And to put it
someplace where we could actually get into what they can and can't do,
how are they going to proceed from here, it was best to put it in,
somewhere in the Mayor's office. And because it was related to economic
development we put it in the Office of Economic Development in this
year's budget.
While we reviewed the MRA, and its duties and responsibilities, it makes
more sense for it to actually be in the Planning Department, because they
assist with the implementation of the, the Wailuku Redevelopment Area
Plan and the design guidelines for the Wailuku redevelopment area. And
that's more a planner type of operation. So we felt it was more
appropriate for them to be there. And this also coincides with the
Planning Department's request for a small, small town planner which you
will hear about, I guess, tomorrow or thereon. And I think this is a move
in the right direction as we're looking at many challenges with some of
our smaller towns and all in conjunction with our General Plan and Maui
Island Plan, these kinds of concerns about small towns losing their own
identity become very real.
So we feel that the MRA is set up for Wailuku. We have other
organizations set up for other small towns that are associations more or
less, but they kind of all have the same goal in mind and that's to preserve
the character of their town, to improve and enhance it, and the biggest
challenge is Wailuku right now, because it's, it's been, well, you see it.
It's coming back, you know, slowly but surely, but I think that moving it
to Planning is, is where you can avail that organization to the resources of
Planning Department much quicker than having it in Economic
Development.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Okay.
That's, that's a reasonable
explanation. I think people were questioning that. There were those in
Wailuku town and other areas that were questioning the, the change, and,
and they've seen the change from this department to that, and like you
said, it's almost been like a stepchild just, oh, that thing now belongs over
there. Oh, now it belongs over there. Full foster care, boy, that, that child
has been sent all over the place.
MAYOR TAVARES: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And it's not, not funny sometimes when
you don't get the result that you intended when this was put together many
years ago by our forefathers thinking that this was very important to keep
Wailuku a vital part of our community and small town, yeah.
The other area, again, and I guess you're, you're, you're, you're basically
doing the same thing here, because I was looking another big increase is
rentals, you know, and again for Economic Development rentals it means
you are renting a lot more space for your people; is that what this all
entails, because you're more than doubling your rental from 68 last year to
130?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, thank you. Actually the, up until this year rental income
was listed under miscellaneous costs. So in order to streamline, again, all
of the, the index codes we wanted to make sure that everything went into
rentals. So there is an increase there. That, that, that explains the, the
increase because it was in miscellaneous costs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess that's the real challenge when
people, or when we change these around. You know, even for people like
myself sitting back here, you look one year it's this and the next year it's
that, and you got to kind of put your finger all over the place to figure out
where it's all coming from. So, but that explanation at least satisfies me
in, in that area.
As far as the grants that you are looking at. I do have one question. When
it comes to MCC ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Victorino -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not yet?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --we'll cover grants later.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again, again, I'm out of my -CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --stepping ahead. Sorry.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Sorry.

That, that will be it for now, Mr. Chair.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama? Thank you. Member
Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to thank
Ms. Tegarden and the Department for doing a really, really sound job and,
you know, considering too that you, in these austere times you've, you
know, you're cutting back on the costs of implementing your A, B, and C
accounts. So I just want to, you know, thank you for being resourceful.
And also with regards to the, I guess, the Energy Expo that was held
earlier this year -MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --or last year, I think that was a great thing, and
I think we're going to get some real positives out of that, and I hope that
continues. And with regards to the Kuhao Business Center on Molokai I, I
noted here that the, part of your accomplishments you augmented the
presence in Molokai of that business center and, you know, it couldn't
have come at a better time due to recent developments. So anyway just
wanted to compliment you to just keep up the good work. And I guess
more of my questions were related to the grants, so I'll wait until Friday.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Deidre, thanks very much. And I think
you've done a commendable job of managing, you know, with sometimes
limited resources and certainly going out and seeking additional funding.
So I appreciate it. The ... (end of tape, side IE) ... just in regard to your
Economic Development Specialists, and you, you didn't note, and I'm not
sure if it was noted in the past on your Ag Specialist. Is there anyone or
is there more than one that's been assigned to this task?
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MS. TEGARDEN: We do have our Agriculture Specialist, Mr. Clark Hashimoto.
He has been with us now since the middle of, of this, this past year. He
has been working diligently with the Kula Ag Park members, number one,
to make sure that everything is streamlined up at the Ag Park. We've also
instituted our Kula Ag Park Commission meetings which is, we're very
happy about that. He's also working with our, our different grantees as we
will talk about on Friday, but also with the Kula Vacuum Cool Plant and
some other things. So, yes, we do have a person in place.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Okay. Great. I just, you know, I
wasn't sure if it was noted in the past of somebody that was specifically
doing that. So I'm glad that, I, I know Mr., I think is it Hashimoto
Persimmon Farm?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I know. I sampled the products, and its
very good.
MS. TEGARDEN: Very delicious.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA; Thank you, Chair. No questions until we get to
the grants. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions in regards to
OED? Seeing none, Members, we'll go directly into grants on your
Budget Details 11-24. These are revenue grants.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: We're going to do that Friday.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: They told us Friday.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not the revenue. The, this is revenue grants.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So we go to 11-24?
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: This is where we receive money.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, throwing me off again. Chair, what
was the pages again, Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 11-24.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 11-24. Okay. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Tegarden, if you can provide us information on
each of the grants, and then we'll have Q and A. As you mentioned, the
grants will, you know, Q and A as soon as you're done with the first one.
MS. TEGARDEN: So the, the first one is the Biofuel Crop Development for
$200,000. And just to give you a little bit of background on this. Plant
derived biofuels are essential to meeting balanced production of renewable
energy in Maui County. They provide firm power and can be grown,
transported, and stored locally. While feed stock for ethanol production in
Maui is available from ongoing sugar cane operations, no existing oil seed
crops have yet been tested that are ergonomically suitable under local
growing conditions. Economic development arising from growing local
demand for biodiesel could be realized if an adequate supply of vegetable
oil and animal fat on the islands could be obtained.
A recent study conducted by CTAHR and the University of Hawaii's, I'm
sorry, and the Hawaii Agricultural Research Center had identified
jatropha, for instance, as a potential bioenergy crop for Hawaii. Given the
lack of knowledge that we have about this field, suitable varieties, and best
management practices, and environmental requirements for profitable
production, commercially produced oil from this crop cannot be attempted
without the necessary information. So this grant for 200,000 would go
toward the research ofbiofuel crop development.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to the biodiesel,
biofuel crop development program? Seeing none, if you could go to the
next one?
MS. TEGARDEN: Okay. The next one is the County project, Product
Enrichment Program. And this is a grant from the Hawaii Tourism
Authority to fund community based product tourism activities throughout
Maui County. It's overall objectives are to develop new and enhanced
existing tourism events, experiences and programs, to support the
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development of niche market areas of agro-tourism, cultural tourism, edutourism, health wellness tourism, eco-tourism, and techno-tourism; to
support programs that preserve, perpetuate, and/or promote Hawaii's host
culture to provide a year round calendar of events, activities, and
experiences with special attention to shoulder periods, and to provide
equitable distribution of events, activities, and experiences throughout
Maui County; and to provide information for visitors through marketing
and promotional efforts to provide a diverse range of value added
experiences; and to support community based tourism initiatives, and to
foster public, private sector partnerships; to support HTA's goal of
increasing visitor expenditures and length of stay; and assist in a
diversification of Hawaii's economy; and to provide entrepreneurial
opportunities for residents.
And I would like to say that many of the HT A festivals that we have are,
while they are originally, you know, we're focusing on visitors, many of
our residents go to these festivals as well, participate in the festivals, and
are the beneficiaries of the dollars that are spent at the festivals.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for that? Member
Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Deidre, because this is part of the HTA
funding, and it's kind of remained, I guess, from the '08 to the '09 budget
level, is there going to be any kind of adjustment at the Maui Visitors
Bureau budget, because I know that they sometimes get pass through
money for these different events, and festivals, and product enrichment,
that type of thing. So I just kind of want to understand how this is
dovetailing with the monies that would be coming to MVB.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. It, it doesn't really, they are two separate
programs and the $500,000 that comes in through the, the, this HTA grant
also goes to fund our Economic Development specialist Cheryl Sterling,
who manages these projects. So, again, the grants and the festivals that we
fund are, are different and, and separate than anything through Maui
Visitors Bureau.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So there's no, so that any of the money
that we would provide through the County and that would also be coming
from Hawaii Tourism Authority to Maui Visitor's Bureau is not duplicated
in any of these enrichment program monies?
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MS. TEGARDEN: That, that is correct. And, and, for instance, you know, we,
through this money we fund the East Maui Taro Festival and a lot of the
local festivals. So, yes, it is different -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. TEGARDEN: --and it's not doubled.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: All right. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Deidre,
next grant program.
MS. TEGARDEN: Okay. Let's see next grant is Environmental Protection
Programs, oh, no co qui frog. We are not going after any coqui frog
specific grants this year. However, what we decided to do was look at
environmental protection programs in general so that we are not limiting
ourselves to just one invasive species or, or one program specifically. So
we, we have identified a number of environmental protection grants that
are out there through State and Federal programs.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, you know, I can appreciate that,
however, by limit, by going for just one 75, 750,000 for all, well not all,
but just about universally whatever is out there, will the State still be able
to fund our Coqui Frog Eradication Program? Because we know, we've
checked it. We're not like the Big Island and Kauai. Right now we've got
it in check, and if we just let up just for a short period of time they'll be
right back at us. And I want to keep it that way, because when I visit my
parents on the Big Island, the one thing I can tell you that coqui frog can
keep me up at night.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now, my parents don't, don't feel it
anymore, because it's been so long they got used to it, but if you're not
used to it, it's a real pain in the neck at night. So I just want to make sure
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that we don't lose sight or, or track of anything; miconia, I don't care
what, but coqui frog in particular, because I know that down in Maliko
Gulch we still got a very strong infestation down there, and we don't want
to let it get out of there. So we're not losing sight of that; are we?
MS. TEGARDEN: We are not, and we work very closely with our partners, with
MISC, and, and with the State, so, no, we are not losing, not losing sight
of that, but I will, I will take that note to heart.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, it's just more flexibility so we can
move the monies around for other eradication purposes; right?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I can, I can live with that. Thank
you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Baisa?

Thank you.

Members, more questions?

Member

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
Yes, just a quick comment on these
environmental protection things. I got a call from a farmer Up country,
actually a rancher, and they're very concerned about fire weed, and I'm
wondering if we're putting any emphasis on that now that we've got the
coqui frogs under control?
MS. TEGARDEN; Yes, we, in our grant line item also on Friday that we will go
over, we have 1.1 million in environmental protection programs; fire
weed, banana bunchy, coqui frog. They're all in there, and we have some
wonderful partners within the community that ensure that we take a look
at all of those, all of those areas. And also, again, our Ag Specialist, Clark
Hashimoto, is in contact with the different farmers and, and making sure
that we are on top of, of these items.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions on this
program? Deidre, next grant program.
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MS. TEGARDEN: Okay. I think the next one is the ... okay. The next one is the
Hawaii Tourism HTA Initiative Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I think there's two of them.
MS. TEGARDEN: Oh, this is for the other product enrichment. This is
$100,000. And these are the funds that go toward improving the County's
tourism product offerings that don't normally fall under the HTA Product
Enrichment Program. So maybe all the festivals fall under the Product
Enrichment Program which is that $500,000 line item. These are
programs that don't fit under other, under that. For instance, we had the
Kamaole Dune Restoration Project last year. And that fell under this
$100,000 funding. So it gives us a little bit more flexibility on projects
that might not really fall under HT A's normal, you know, tourism, visitor
type programs and allow for the restoration of, of the dunes and things like
that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
Member Johnson?

Members, questions for that program?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Would this have been one of the programs
where, I remember when we did the pump-out. Was this, would this have
been the category that it would have fallen into?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, and thank you for, for that. Yes, pump-out was through
this program as well as some funding through OED, and we were able to
also get some DLNR funding as well. But you are correct, that's the type
of program, something that doesn't really fit under the HTA mission.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thanks.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions to, to this
grant program? If not, Deidre, the next program.
MS. TEGARDEN: All right. The next one is also another HTA Grant. This is
for funding up to $500,000 for security systems at some of the, the parks
throughout Maui County. We are still working on the, the details, that we
would most likely be partnering with Maui Visitor's Bureau, the Police
Department, and the Parks for surveillance systems that we could put in at
select County parks.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to this grant
program? If not, Deidre, the next grant program? I think it's hazardous
mitigation.
MS. TEGARDEN: Oh, the hazard mitigation. Yes. The State of Hawaii Hazard
Mitigation Fund has recognized the County to, OED to receive $800,000
for improvements up at the Kula Ag Park. Right now we are working
with the stakeholders to try to figure out how best to spend that money. It
will most likely go for the, the pipes up at the Ag Park need new linings.
So we're looking at, you know, putting the money toward that, possibly
putting it toward some improvements at the pump station. But this would
be coming in at the, at the beginning of, of July if it' s approved.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I, I guess I'm not quite clear. I mean
I understand your explanation, but hazard mitigation, you mean repair of
pipes? I guess I could relate to that, but I would have thought hazard
mitigation would mean something that would be very hazardous;
chemicals, fire potential. I, I guess hazard, that's what I'm looking for.
Repairing of pipes I guess could be put under hazard, but it doesn't fit in
my mind. But what was the purpose of this fund? How, how, what is the
State's purpose for this fund?
MS. TEGARDEN: Droughts. Drought, drought is, is-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
MS. TEGARDEN: --is what is, something they considered a hazard. So a
drought, this would be like a drought mitigation. They call it the Hawaii
hazard mitigation, but it's, it's for the drought.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well, now, see, now, I can make
sense to it. Sorry. I mean -MS. TEGARDEN: No, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I couldn't understand what hazard, my
word hazard was really, and drought wasn't a part of it but, yes, you do
make a good point because it would be a fire hazard, and et cetera. Yeah,
okay.
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MS. TEGARDEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions to this grant
program? Deidre, the next grant program?
MS. TEGARDEN: The Sea Grant.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The Sea Grant.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, the Sea Grant, the Aquatic Invasive Species. As you
know, this year is the International Year of the Reef. So in order to be
able to do as much as we can for our County, we are seeking funding up to
$300,000 through the Sea Grant which is for Aquatic Invasive Species.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions to that? Seeing none,
the next grant program please.
MS. TEGARDEN: Okay, and next is Preserve America. As you know, and thank
you very much, we have been designated as a Preserve America
community, and with this designation comes the opportunity to apply for
up to $150,000 in Federal funding for a project that gives back to the
community. It highlights our cultural and traditional heritage that we have
here in Maui County. So one thing we, we were a little bit concerned
about was that because this is a presidential program we weren't sure if it
would be continuing on, but we have heard back from Washington, D.C.
This program will be continued so we are eligible to apply for this
funding.
So from, from now we are going to be working with our community
partners on putting together a project that would benefit our community
and as a reminder there can be, we would not be able to move forward
with this program unless it has Council's approval. So as we move
forward we will be coming in front of you again to ask for your support
and, and guidance.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
program? Member Johnson?

Members, any questions to this grant

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know that Aunty Edna Bekeart and of course
the Maui Land and Pine or Kapalua Land has been actually working
towards the resurrection of the trail around the pali. So this would be
eligible to apply for that either for signage or I guess design of the trail
and implementation?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, and the, the nice thing about this is that it wouldn't have
to be just one group's trail. What we could do is we could do trails across
Maui County and the Preserve America funding prefers to do something at
a much larger scale. And a lot of the conversations that we've had with
our community members, a lot of people are talking about trails. So this
is, that is definitely something we could do and do it on a large scale for
all ofMaui County.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and it, and it has to specifically be tied
into the cultural preservation aspect though?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct. And it can't be improvements to a current project. It
has to be something new. So, yes, to answer your question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thanks very much I appreciate that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions to this grant
program? Ifnot, Deidre, the next one?
MS. TEGARDEN: All right. The next one is Renewable Energy Programs for
2.2 million in, in general. The County controls, manages and/or is linked
to many renewable energy sources. Among them are landfill gas,
municipal solid waste, hydro potential of downhill waterlines, and spaces
for wind and solar power systems. Matured technologies such as waste to
energy and hydro are available, but need financial engineering, planning,
and studies. Once developed they could significantly contribute to the
renewable energy portfolio ofMaui County.
Maui County serves as an ideal site to locate and test new and emerging
green technologies as well. And the recently announced 70-30 Hawaii
Clean Energy Initiative attests to the U.S. Department of Energy's
commitment to making Hawaii the model for transferable integrated
renewable energy systems. The Office of Economic Development is, is
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always looking for new opportunities that make sense for Maui County, so
there are grants available through the Department of Energy. We are
working with our, our partners and our stakeholders again as we move
forward with initiatives that have come out of our energy expo with our
partners MEDB and the Department of Energy we are going to go after
grants that can, can work for Maui County and bring the right type of
technology to Maui County. We want to make sure that whatever we
bring here is, is good for our community.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to that grant
program? Seeing none, the next one. I think that's your last one the next
one?
MS. TEGARDEN: Okay. Yes, the Plug-in Hybrids. The biggest challenge that
we have with solar wind and other as generated power is their intermittent
nature which makes it very difficult to integrate the energy into our
electricity grid. But with a system that stores energy during the day or
during windy periods, the power can then be released at a continuous
steady state and be much more easily integrated into the grid. So
emerging advanced storage technologies can, potentially combine with the
PREY's, the Plug-in Hybrids, in a seamlessly interconnected storage
network, hence the development of a robust virtual energy storage system
will make it possible for the large scale penetration of many of Maui
County's renewable energy sources into the power grid. So, again, we
need to do research and, and studies on these things, but there are grant
monies out there available for this. So this is another thing that we are
going forward with.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Johnson?

Thank you.

Members, any questions?

Member

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, because this is a technology that I am
unaware if it's actually taken root here in Maui County, because most of
the hybrid vehicles such as mine don't require plug-in. So is this
something that you're going to cultivate then or is it something that we'll
be going into in terms of County-based projects?
MAYOR T AV ARES : Yeah, maybe I can shed a little more light on it. The
PREY's or the plug-in electric cars is the next step. Like your car, for
example is not a plug-in, but this would be a car that would be the same
capabilities as yours, but the other added capability is to be charged
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through an electrical source so that you plug it into something, and it gives
us just a few more options.
The, the part about using it as, storing electricity that can be fed to the grid
later that's also being studied all over the U.S. to find another source of
firm power. But in the meantime I think that Maui has an opportunity to
become a test site, not necessarily a test site, but a data site, and we're
working on a project right now to get us one demonstration vehicle that
we can help to supply data to the energy lab in Idaho who is working on
this nationwide. So we'll be proceeding, you know, proceeding with
anything that helps us to get off of fossil fuel. And I've always had the,
was under the understanding that it is not one pill that is going to solve our
problem here, it's many, many different ones, and we call it the energy
buffet. And you need to have sources, a mixed bunch of sources so that
you can even out the reliability of having alternative renewable energy.
So this is just one, one small part.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and I, I, really appreciate that. And, and
is this in coordination with the State of Hawaii actually being designated, I
guess, as one of the, the primary test area for energy independence? I
believe Governor Lingle had announced some type of a program that we
were going to be involved in at the State level, and then try to, I guess to
do experimental projects to see how independent we can become in terms
of our non-dependence on fossil fuel.
MAYOR TAV ARES: I think how we tied into that, I'm not sure if it's
specifically that, because it is through I believe the Department of Energy,
U.S. Department of Energy through their energy labs. And the west coast
or the western region is part of one of this data gathering type of, of sites,
and Maui has been selected as one of the sites to receive I think it's one,
one car, one car. There's not that many out there, so we're kind of
privileged to have that one.
And, you know, I'm kind of excited about the prospect, because I think
that, you know, while we can wait for things to be tried and true if we
keep waiting for the best thing to come out we're never going to, you
know, be there. I think we have to take some calculated risks, participate
in programs like this where we can add to the body of knowledge for
everyone. And if we have a vehicle here that has different climates,
impacts such as, I think they have some in Seattle, California some place.
So there are cars going out around the western region, and they want to
look at data on mileage and how often it's charged, and how long it runs
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on a charge, those kinds of things. So it will be, in fact it's a Prius, which
I think you have.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. No, I have the Insight -MAYOR TAVARES: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --and the Honda Civic Hybrid.
MAYOR TAVARES: Okay. The Prius I think is the one that we're, we're slated
to get with a modification that would modify it for the electrical part, the
plug-in part. But I think it's an exciting time to be part of this.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and I know that it's really great for
us to move into these areas, because the money actually is going to, in the
long run, what money we invest now is going to save us in the long run.
The, I guess just as a general question and perhaps, Deidre, you can
answer this.
All the monies that we're looking at when we look at grant revenue I think
the average person figures, oh, you've already secured that you've written
grants for it, but what you're doing is you're actually alerting the
community that this is a revenue stream that is available to us and that if
they have a project that fits within that category, you would assist them or
assist others in going after the grant money or is this money that's already
been secured through grants that have been written?
MS. TEGARDEN: It's, it's a little bit of all of that. Some of the, the grants come
directly to the County. A lot of these grants we have identified, we have
not written applications for yet. However, the drought mitigation grant we
did write that grant and the money has been okayed for us to accept should
it be accepted, you know, the budget be accepted. We will be able to have
that money come in in July, and we will be utilizing that funding to make
the improvements up at the Ag Park. So, it, it really depends on the, on
the grant itself. But, yes, to, to all your, your questions there. It just
depends.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and I think what it would do is it would
help people to understand, because the average person doesn't understand
even under some of our, I guess, redevelopment monies, like, for, there's
one grant that was available that we've never tapped into which would be
I believe, like, to renovate or to do something. I believe it's an EPA grant.
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And I was thinking of the Pioneer Mill site, because it was a site that had
been contaminated. And so there are monies available for that. But many
people they don't, they don't write for it, and so the money just goes
unspent.
If, if you could do us a favor. When we discuss grants or, you know,
maybe even look at this I think it's going to be helpful to maybe just put a
little asterisk as to put what, what portion of monies are actually secured
grants, and then what is not secured that we need applicants for or we need
people to come in with projects so that we can tap into these monies. That
might help stimulate, I think some of the innovators in our community to
go and assist you in applying for that.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, we can certainly do that. And, you know, just to, to
piggy back on that, for instance, the money that comes through HT A, that
comes to the County, and then we put out an RFP for people to write
grants, and then that money actually flows through OED and back out to
the grantee. But I can, we can certainly do that. And I think also on
Friday when we talk about grants in general that are awarded through
OED that might help clarify some things as well. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and I, I really appreciate that. And the
name of the other grant was the Brownfields Grant that was the one that
we have not tapped into. Anyway, thank you very much for your
information. I appreciate it.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions in regards to
Grant Programs? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, I'm sorry to back up, but on the first grant
that we looked at that was the biofuel crop development, what was the
source of funding? I missed it.
MS. TEGARDEN: The source of funding for the biofuel crop I think is
Department of Energy. Am I, am I correct? Yes, it's Department of
Energy.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And this is some competitive pot that we're going
to go to and try to get funding?
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MS. TEGARDEN: Correct. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, if there's no more questions in
Grants program, we do have one single CIP in the Mayor's Budget. If you
could turn to page 31-5 in your Program Budget. This is $125,000 for
construction. Mayor? ... (end of tape, side 2A) ...
MAYOR TAVARES: Okay. Thank you, Chair. I got to shuffle my papers back
around. Okay. On the CIP that you're looking at it shows $125,000 that's
being proposed for next year showing the prior appropriation of 315,000.
This is a continuation of the renovations on the ninth floor. And
specifically the 125,000 would be, would be used to actually look at the
two places that is not going, undergoing serious renovations.
So the places not going under serious, I mean total, like, break the walls
down and stuff are the conference room area, the Managing Director's
Office, my office, and the Budget office. So those are not going to have
walls broken down like the rest of the place. So this is to help upgrade
the, the Mayor's conference room further. Besides putting the furniture in
there now we'd like to put in a drop down screen for the presentations that
we have for many times. We need a lighting upgrade in there for sure.
And if any of you have been in that room and tried to figure out what's the
difference between the house lights and the regular lights, you know,
when you find out please let me know. And then we also want to take off
the wallpaper and repaint. So we need to get that. We've been painting
over and painting over that wallpaper for 20 something years now, and we
need to just get that thing off of there and, and do it right.
So that's what it is. And then part of it would also be used to renovate the
existing Budget office. So that would be some, you know, retinting of the
windows, painting, and perhaps new flooring or replace carpeting in the
really bad areas, because the last carpeting I think we did not do the
Budget office.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to the CIP
proposal at this time? Seeing none, thank you very much, Mayor, for your
overvIew. Members, if you do have any more questions if you can
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forward it to the Chair, and then we'll forward it to the Mayor's office for
answers.
MAYOR T AV ARES: Chair, did you want to go over the Open Space Fund
acquisition, land acquisitions at this time?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, okay.
MAYOR T AV ARES: Because I think Mr. Bonar gave a pretty good description
of what was the intended use. That Murphy's Beach thing would be
Morris Point or Kumimi. It has so many names it's kind of mind boggling
sometimes. Seven hundred thousand dollars would, it would be 100
percent of the purchase for 7.42 acres.
The Kawaikapu Ranch on Molokai also the County funds would be
480,000 which represents 38 percent of the total price. The DLNR or
through the funds granted would be 770,000 of State or Federal money
and County money would be 480,000.
On Nuu lands and wetlands this, this is the, the sweetest one of them all I
think, because our share comes out to 221,000 approximately out of 5.46
million. So there is Federal grants at 2.7 almost 2.8 million, State grants at
almost a million, other grants or other funds at 1.4 million, and our share
is 220,000. So I think this is a wonderful opportunity for us to, to get
some significant lands in, in the public hands.
The Keanae taro loi you heard that it was a 50-50 between the Federal
government and the County. So that's the 350,000 would be half of the,
the cost to ensure that easement.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to those grants as
mentioned by the Mayor? Seeing none, Mayor, thank you.
MAYOR T AV ARES: Okay. I have sort of the answer for the question that came
up earlier about those positions -CHAIR PONT ANILLA: About the half-time? Yeah, please.
MAYOR T AV ARES: --about the half-time. Actually the half-time position is
more like a 3/5's time, and we're moving that to a full-time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I figured that.
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MAYOR T AV ARES : Yeah, and the other position was in the Budget office and
that was moving a person from a really part-time to actually full-time
because that is not a part-time job and what we've been doing is the
emergency hire, the 89 day thing, and that's just not right. We shouldn't
be using that as a, as a vehicle to put a person in a position.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to that explanation
on the half-time positions? Thank you. Mayor, I just want to say thank
you for being here -MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --and providing us your overview in regards to your
budget. Members, the Chair is looking at the time. The Chair is going to
call for a recess, and we'll reconvene at five to 11 :00. This meeting is in
recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:42 a.m.
10:58 a.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, this morning we do have with us
the Department of Management and the Managing Director Sheri
Morrison. Good morning. At this time, Members, if you can turn to page
six of your proposed bill, and on your Program Budget page 12-1 to 1211, and your Budget Details page 10-1 to 10-16. At this time, the Chair
would like to call on Mr. Pablo to provide us with an overview on the
Managing Director's, the Department of Management. Director?
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla. Good morning, Members. I'll just
go very briefly over the, the Department of Management. You should
have a five-page handout in front of you. The first page summarizes the
Department and each of the following pages is one page for, for each
program. The Department of Management will be covering these
operations today, and they also have one CIP project, and you should also
have a handout for that shortly if not already distributed.
For the Management office these are all General Fund Programs, and as
you can see on that first page there, there's four programs; the
Management Program; Energy Program; a Geographic Information
System Program; and Management Information System Program.
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Looking in the third column to see what has transpired from the Fiscal
Year '09 proposed budget versus Fiscal Year '08. You can see that two of
the programs have had a, a decrease. There's an increase in a GIS,
Geographic Information System, for a net decrease over the '08 budget of
72,000. There's an expansion position being requested and this will be
covered under the Management Information System Program. And there's
two programs which are requesting equipment this year, the Geographic
Information System and the Management Information System Programs.
On the page two, is the Management Program overview. Again, looking
at the net change over the past year we have a $17,000 decrease. As you
can see salaries and wages have decreased as well as the request for
equipment. There's no expansion positions being requested in the
Management Program.
The Operations there's a net change of 28,000, and you can see where
they're coming from. There's basically four items which make up the net
change. Continuing on to page three we cover the Energy Program.
There's one employee in this program. Again looking at the net increase
from last year it's very minimal for $8,000. There's a decrease in salaries,
an increase in operation for 10,000, and in the middle of the page you'll
see what accounts for that increase in $10,000.
On page four is the overview of the Geographic Information Systems
Program. This is an office with six employees. The salary change was
25,000 for the year. Operations is increasing 29,000 and that's essentially
rentals. As you can see in the middle of the page they're requesting
equipment of 57,000 and this consists of the four major areas below; seven
panel monitors, two laptops, three GIS work stations and a scanner/copier.
Lastly is the Management Information System Program on page five, and
again I draw your attention to the third column looking at what are we
proposing for '09 versus the '08 budget which was the first year of this, of
this Administration. There's an increase in salaries and wages of 167,000.
This covers 29 employees under the collective bargaining agreements.
There's a request for an expansion position for an Information Systems
Analyst IV, and then there's equipment requests. And let me give you a
little background on equipments requests. This is equipment for the
County. This is in all of the departments as well as equipment for
expansion posItIOns. Thank you very much. Here is Director Sheri
Morrison. She can provide an overview or answer any of your questions.
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She also has members of her staff in the gallery who will be able to
answer any specific questions. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sheri, opening comments?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and good morning, Members. I'm
happy to be here today and thank you for the opportunity to review our
budget with you again, once again this year. As you've heard from Fred
Pablo, the Budget Director, we have four programs in the, in the
Department of Management; Management, Energy, MIS, and GIS. Each
program provides support to other County departments to help them
function. And as you can see from the summary we have a total of about
4.9 million as our overall operating budget.
For the, for the Management Program which I, if it's all right, Mr. Chair,
I'd like to describe.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Go ahead.
MS. MORRISON: The Management Program includes myself as the Managing
Director. Under the direction of the Mayor, responsibilities include
oversight of 17 departments and agencies and coordination of
interdepartmental and Countywide issues. This includes supporting the
Budget Director and staff; and the Finance Department, in the
development and implementation of the annual budget, participating in the
Finance Department's Investment Committee and Bond Rating Agency
process, working with Civil Defense and County, State, and Federal
departments and agencies in emergency and disaster recovery efforts;
coordinating compliance with Title II of the American's Disabilities Act;
oversight of County security systems and veteran's issues; Project
Management for selected capital improvements; and development of
Countywide coordination and planning of our Capital Improvement
Program once we get that Countywide CIP Coordinator hired. In addition
to that, the Managing Director oversees the three other programs in the
department including Energy, GIS, and MIS.
During this past year, the Mayor asked the Department of Personnel
Services to take on the responsibility of, for oversight of equal
employment policies and practices, a function that had previously been in
the Department of Management. As a result of that change we are
proposing to transfer the position of Equal Employment Compliance
Officer to the Department of Personnel Services. The Compliance Officer
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will assist the Director of Personnel Services with work related to equal
employment issues. We're not proposing any new positions or equipment
in the, in the Management Program and overall our, our budget is slightly
less than in Fiscal Year '08.
Earlier this morning, there was a question regarding vacancies in the
Management Program, and I can address that at the moment. There are
two unfunded Executive Assistant positions in the Department of
Management, Management Program. As you may recall, last year I came
before you with the request to add those positions as unfunded EPs to add
to our account without funding them, because they represent positions for
Director and a Deputy in the Mayor's Cabinet who have return rights to
the Managing Director's Office. And at the time I explained I don't
anticipate them returning, but if the position is there for them to return to,
they'll have a place to come, and then we would come before you for a
budget amendment at that time to get funding for those positions. So
those two positions are indeed vacant, and I anticipate they will stay that
way, but they are sitting there as part of our EP account. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions? We'll start off
with Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'm very interested in the GIS System. Are we
going to get into that later?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, we will take care of Management Program first.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. No questions on the management part. I'll
come back later. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No questions.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina?
Good mormng,
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Thank you, Chair.
Ms. Morrison. Just a quick question on the CIP Coordinator being
transferred from the Mayor's office to, to your office. Now, just so I can
get a clarification on the increase, salary increase.
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MS. MORRISON: It wasn't actually a salary increase. Last year the position was
funded for eight months and this year it's funded for 12.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: That's it?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's it, yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you. And again I'm going
through your, your Details 10-4, under Professional Services. It's gone
from 60,000 to 100,000. Again is that, is that the same theory that you've
been using condensing other areas to put it into one or, because that was
the largest and, you know, about 40 percent increase from the year before,
yeah. Actually 66 percent increase from the year before. So was there a
specific reason what that Professional Services represents?
MS. MORRISON: Yes, there is an intentional reason to that related to my plan,
assuming this budget is proposed, the budget as proposed is approved by
the Council, I would like to use the Professional Services funds, and I
rearranged it so that there was additional funding in that, in that category,
to allow the hiring of a management's consultant to take a look at the
structure and organization of the Department of Management.
In general best management practices consider form following function.
That means you would first identify your goals and objectives, and then
identify the programs you were going to carry out and the staffing and
structure for that. Over the years, we've, we've been following the
opposite of that. We have function following form. Nothing has changed
in terms of the structure of the Department of Management, but we have
added all kinds of additional responsibilities and additional staffing all of
whom are doing a great job, and I'm, I'm very pleased with. However, I
do think that given the responsibilities that the Charter envisions for the
Managing Director which are to be a principal management aid to the
Mayor, in addition to that we have 54 employees that are doing other,
other things related to GIS, MIS, Energy and so forth.
So I want to take the opportunity to take a look at identifying the key
responsibilities in the Department of Management, determining the best
structure and staffing to carry that out, and identify other structures either
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in existence now or need, that need to be created to carry out any other
essential structure, any other essential functions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I, I can accept that. That seems
reasonable. I do have one more question. On that same page, but further
down under Veteran's Affairs, you know, $14,000 compared to a lot of
other things we fund seems very insignificant. You know, we have a lot
of veterans and more and more are returning every day from the conflicts
in Iraq, and Afghanistan, and wherever. And I just feel like sometimes,
those are one of the areas where I'd like to see more money put in. You
know, I'm not trying to question the wisdom of the Mayor or your, or
your, your department, but can you specifically tell me what that does that
14,000? I mean it just says miscellaneous costs grant, County grant
subsidy. You know, specifically what does that aid the veterans in?
MS. MORRISON: In previous years it's been used for a grant proposal on the
island of Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. MORRISON: It's another one of those situations where the County is faced
with supplementing work that is really the Federal government, in this
case responsibility. But, again, as you say we have a responsibility of our
own to our citizens and that's what that funding has been used for. If you
wish to see that program expanded, certainly you have that opportunity
yourself, but we have not anticipated that at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. All right. I think I just wanted
clarification on that, and at a, at a certain point I may recommend
something, and take from Peter to pay Paul, but somehow find it. But I
think our veterans, whether they're on Molokai or any part of this County,
whether it's a Federal or State issue it's still our people, and I, I don't
want, I think those people deserve a little extra wherever and whenever we
can find it. But thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I appreciate that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Morrison, coming back to your
Professional Services, you indicated that you, you're going to hire a
consultant to review your operations and, and from that you, you'll I guess
formulate goals and objectives for your operations?
MS. MORRISON: Actually, Mr. Chair, I wanted the consultant to take a look at
what's the best way to carry out those goals and objectives that we have.
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What, if the current structure that we are in makes the best sense or if there
should be a different staffing pattern or organizational structure.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. And, and that could be expanded to the
different departments if it does work in your work area?
MS. MORRISON: Yes, it might mean changing the location of, of operations
that are in our department now, or it could mean leaving them because
that's a good place to be. I just feel that we have grown a lot in the last,
especially in the last ten or 15 years in the Department of Management
without the opportunity to review that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Okay.
We'll go to your next program, the Energy Program.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. What the overall goal of improving
Maui County's energy self-sufficiency, the Energy Specialists in the
Energy Program provides technical support to government agencies and
the public, manages energy projects and programs, and participates in
energy planning forums and regulatory proceedings. For example, the
Energy Specialists represents the County at Maui Electric's integrated
resource planning meetings and at Public Utilities Commission meetings.
The Fiscal Year '09 Budget has an increase of $10,000 to cover the costs
of consultant services such as expert witnesses or consultants for contested
case proceedings before the PUC. Last year the Energy Specialist moved
to an office in One Main Plaza and absorbed those rental costs in the, in
his existing budget. The proposed increase, though small, will make
available more funds for program costs.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you.
Mr. Victor's department; right?

And I guess this IS

MS. MORRISON: No, this is Kal Kobayashi who's a civil servIce energy
specialist in the Department of Management.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
office fall under?

So what is Victor's, where does Victor's
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MS. MORRISON: It's in Office of Economic Development over in the Office of
the Mayor.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I was trying to get the two guys, two
people separated. Okay. I just wanted to know. And I've got to say that
they've done a yeoman's job in, in what they've been doing for the
County. I think this is one of those areas where I have total faith and
confidence in what the Mayor's bringing forth. So no questions. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So explain to us why the Energy Program is under
Department of Management, but the grant funding and the use of
potentially millions of grant funds is under Office of the Mayor then?
MS. MORRISON: The Energy Program was moved to the Department of
Management, I don't know when, sometime in the last ten or 15 years,
which in this case is, is one person. When the Mayor, Mayor's
Administration began she wanted to expand that and her opportunity to do
that was within the Office of the Mayor and under the Office of Economic
Development. The, the Energy Commissioner and the Office of Economic
Development has been focusing on a lot of the renewable energy grants
that you heard described this morning. The Energy Specialist coordinates
with that, but is more focused on the regulatory nature of energy issues in
Maui County.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So is there two different programs?
MS. MORRISON: There are two different programs and yet, obviously, they
overlap and collaborate at times. But that's one of the issues that I hope to
look at in looking at the overall structure of the Department.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No questions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding
the Energy Program? If not, we go into Management Information Systems
Program.
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, could we go to GIS first, and then do the
Management Information Systems last -CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sure.
MS. MORRISON: --since they have the CIP project?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We'll go into the GIS System at this time, and if
Mr. Medeiros can come down.
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, Bill Medeiros is the Geographic Information
System's Manager, and he can give us a brief overview of that program.
MR. MEDEIROS: Just for the record I am the other Bill Medeiros. Most of us
know, most of you know what we do. We did a presentation a few months
ago that kind of went over the history and all. I'll just give you a brief
background. We're the lead GIS agency. Our function is primarily doing
geographic information of things that have some geographic tie to it. We
are both a service agency.
We provide services and products to
departments that do not have any GIS. Also to other jurisdictions and to
the public, and then we also do technical support to those departments that
have GIS personnel, and then finally we also do the sort of bigger pictures
stuff, research and development and developing applications for
Countywide GIS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
Yes, Chair, thank you.
And thank you,
Mr. Medeiros. We seem to have a lot of Medeiros' in this group; John
Medeiros, you, Bill. Anyway, good company. You know, I'm very
impressed with the work that comes out of this Department, and I get to
look at maps that you've created, and I know you've been really busy this
year trying to get stuff together for the General Plan. And I'm wondering
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about, I noticed that you're not asking for any expansion position, and I'm
wondering if you had a wish list that got trimmed?
MR. MEDEIROS: No, but, but let me correct something. That we're not directly
involved in the General Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You're not?
MR. MEDEIROS: No, the Planning Department has their own GIS staff. I
believe they have five or six GIS people. And so the products that are
done for the Department of Planning and their, their own processes and,
and projects are done by that, those staff people.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Wonderful. Well, thank you for straightening me
out. Now I know why you don't have any more expansions because, you
know, I've go to figure out that these people, whoever has been doing all
that work, has been really, really busy.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: But I, I just want to thank you. Earlier this year I
needed a map of the area I'm responsible for, and I was totally impressed
with what was given to me, how clear it was, the detail of it, and I really
appreciate it. Thank you.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, no problem. And if I can address the second half of
your question, just shortly. Yeah, we did not request any expansion
positions because we got two last year, and we're in the process now,
we've got one filled and the others on the recruitment. And so, yeah,
there's no need this year to ask for any, any staff.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, thank you very much. That's really, you
know, very honest of you, and we appreciate that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and I, and I echo the thankfulness that
Member Baisa is mentioning because I know that when I have specific
requests your department has always been very cooperative. So I do
appreciate that. One of the things that I'm, you know, because we get so
many different outside agencies and whatnot providing us with computer
models and all sorts of scenarios like for disaster mitigation. How are we
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doing in terms of our preparedness? Because I see one of the things here
that we've got is coordination with Civil Defense hazard mitigation and
particularly with sea level rise, particularly with coastal erosion which
we're having tremendous problems at different times of the year. How are
you actually progressing in that area and is there additional software that
you've purchased or are going to be purchasing that would help I guess
enhance your capabilities?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, we, we started, got involved in the hazard mitigation
side eight years ago, about the time that we actually got created as a
division in the original process of hazard mitigation and from that process
the, the County's Hazard Mitigation office was created. So we provide
services to them. And so in the last updates of the tsunami evacuation
maps for the phone books we provided, we did the, the map work
provided to Civil Defense. There was a request to do a, look at maybe a
higher elevation and see what, what properties we met in terms of, you
know, actually sort of creeping up a little bit or saying, okay, what's
affected.
The other project we worked on the specification, but we were not, the
money's not in our budget, is the collection of LIDAR data for new flood
maps. And that data, when finally collected and processed into elevation
models, was going to be, that's going to kind of drive the next level. I
talked about it in my, my presentation about third generation and that's
going to be one of the key things about the third generation is having very,
very accurate elevation maps of all the islands in the County. That will do
two things. It will create a new base from which we're going to go, and
then we actually start to look at erosion using, you know, subsequent
LIDAR, but also to come up with much better inundation and, and flood
maps. You know, the County flood maps from FEMA it's been a long
time since they were created and there's been a lot of development.
Certain areas of the County were not included in the flood mapping at that
time, because there weren't that many people there. So this, this, that
whole project I think is, is real important. From our side we primarily,
you know, we work in the conceptualization of that, the, the project and
also with standards. And we are doing our own processing of the data to
make sure it's, it's good stuff, but it's primarily handled out of the
Department of Planning.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I, I really appreciate that and basically I
think, you know, you, you're doing as, as well as you possibly can given,
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you know, I guess the advance of technology. One of the things and not,
you haven't specifically addressed that there is some equipment purchase
and what not that you're requiring. But one of the things I want to find
out is we were doing, from my recollection, were you doing aerial
photography?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, there's a contract, there's actually two sources of
satellite photography that the County is getting a hold of. We go through
a consortium, a State consortium from map products from a company
called GUI. It used to be called Space Imaging. And that's called the
Iconos. That's their product. In addition, Planning also has a project that
collects satellite ... (end of tape, side 2B) ... and basically we use both,
what happens is the cloud cover issues, and so on, and just trying to get
photographs of the island. In some cases, one is better. In some cases, the
other is better. And so we kind of try to use both.
And so, yeah, we're continually trying to do that. After the, the flood
event in Kula, DLNR was able to get that area tasked again. And so, you
know, there's sort of before and after flood maps that actually helps you
identify what kind of damage was done and, and those kind of things. So,
yeah, we are working on that. There's another system called pictometry
which it does oblique. You know, you're looking at the face of buildings
as opposed to straight up and down and that's also, I think, something
that's, you know, sort of coming down the road. It hasn't been delivered
yet anywhere in the State of Hawaii, but it's something that, what the
Police Department and, and most of the real property agencies are looking
at in terms of supporting them. And so we've kind of met with the
vendors to just kind of see what, what the specs are.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And so basically from, from what you're
saying then you're able to share data that you're getting from Planning as
well as some additional digital imaging that's, you purchase directly then
for whatever sources or whatever you have as far as ... (inaudible) ...
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, and, and generally imagery is licensed, so its primarily
within the County agencies, and certain other government agencies, and
then, and, and vendors that are working for the County.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So you'd have to get an additional license to
be able to utilize that; is that what you're saying?
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MR. MEDEIROS: Well, the license covers all those uses, but it's not in the
public domain.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: So if a member of the public comes in with a, you know, USB
drive and says, yeah, give me all the imagery. We can't; it's licensed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and I, I'm sure some people would
not want to have that available. Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, I think all of the questions for me have
been answered. I just want to compliment Mr. Medeiros, keep up the
good job in the department.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Medeiros, help me understand, at the end of the
second quarter you still had 70 percent of your balances available of funds
to you, and yet you're still going to ask us for some sizeable increases in
your budget. So help me understand why you need more money when you
show good balances left in your accounts?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, the, our equipment purchases are normally done in the
second half of the fiscal year. And so I've got, the equipment money
going through right now, I've got two requisitions in, we've just
confirmation on, on delivery of one laptop, and we're working on the
specs with the County surveyors on the GPS base stations. So that's
another $20,000. And so primarily what we do is we try to wait into the
fiscal year so we get the, the latest models, the best bang for the buck on,
on, in terms of equipment purchases.
There is going to be some salary left over, because it took us a while to
recruit. We've still gone one vacancy. And so that's going to be another
place where they'll be some funds available. But once the two positions
are filled, then you're not going to see that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So what is the issue with the vacancy? You don't
have a list?
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MR. MEDEIROS: Well, we ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You don't have enough people taking the test?
MR. MEDEIROS: What happened was we had gotten a list for one position, and
we had gone through interviews and basically when we got the list for the
second position that person was the one on that list. And so we hired her
at that position, for the higher position, and we requested a list for the, the
first position again. So an updated list. And there is a fair amount of
competition. GIS is kind of a growing field. And so that's the other.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. Medeiros?

So where are you planning to rent from,

MR. MEDEIROS: What was that again?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Where are you planning to rent from?
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh, we're not moving. We're in the Trask Building in 104.
Currently, we pay the rent, and it comes out of wherever in the budget. So
primarily I take half of my professional services, and I just allocate that to
pay our rent. And so we pay our rent, but we don't have an actual item for
rent. And so what we've asked for is to actually put that in as, as an item,
and I had to actually put the rent in, in the, in the budget. And so we are
not moving. We are staying in the same place.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So who was paying the rent; Finance, for your, your
area?
MR. MEDEIROS: No, like I said it came out of our budget. Originally, when we
moved there it was part of the, the transition of the old, the Planning
Department's building, the old Police Station when they had the issue with
the mold. Over time when that money disappeared, then we had to, we
absorbed the, the rental ourselves.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, you, you just asking us to detail the break
out now to assess you the, your annualized rental requirements?
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah, basically just set up a sub-object code and then put in
enough money to, to cover the rent.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So the equipment is just for your program or this is
equipment that is for specific departments?
MR. MEDEIROS: It is primarily for our program. And what we do is we have a,
we replace periodically some of the equipment every year. And so we
kind of look at that. And so that's replacing our, our equipment. And then
the equipment that gets replaced, when we get new equipment in, then we
take that equipment and kind of move it out, and then use it for other kinds
of things. So we don't directly toss out any machine. As the new ones
come in we kind of keep using them, and then from the last generations,
we've got about four different generations of, of, and then those are the
ones that we replace. That's the ones that we, we turn in to the computer
swap.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So do we have an inventory control problem with the
method you're doing? You're extending the life of equipment we're
replacing?
MR. MEDEIROS: Not really, because we have, our space is so small it's easy to
find everything. So it's, it's, and secondly our equipment is fairly large,
so they do stand out. So basically what happens is each year we get new
equipment, and then we process out the much older work stations. And so
I just kind of keep handing them down from different use to different use.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So you depreciate out, out of your division, and then
when it goes to another agency or program area it's already written off?
MR. MEDEIROS: We use these things a long time. And so normally by the time
we get to the end nobody wants them. If somebody wanted them they,
they definitely could, but we normally run the machines in the four to five
year range and, yeah, it's, we, we, we definitely make use of the
equipment.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So this is something you and MIS have coordinated
so we have a unified County, County policy regarding this type of
computer equipment, software program?
MR. MEDEIROS: Our equipment is a little different from everybody else's. So
basically our work stations are used just for work stations. They are not,
you know, our intent is not to tie them into and use them for email or
anything along those lines. And we process data on very high-end work
stations. And then as those get replaced, so as, you know, as, as newer
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and better models come out, then the older models then get put on and,
and put on the network, and then, and then we can do email and the
standard kind of word processing and those kinds of things. And so we
kind of just kind of move them down through the, the usage.
The equipment we buy, for the most part it's going to be similar in terms
of the, I mean the workstations are Dell. The, we use the same operating
system which would be XP Professional. And so there's no issues in
terms of when it gets time to hook them up to, into the network.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I'm just wondering why we would keep old
outdated equipment if you already get, you know, get our approval to
replace or why we would keep old, and then have to deal with an
inventory control report that every other departments have to sign off on?
So help me understand then, if you need, if you get seven people why
would you ask me for seven monitors if you got only six employees?
MR. MEDEIROS: Oh, yeah, well, what we've been doing is we've been doing
tests using dual monitors on one of the machines, and it, it makes it a lot
easier for us when we're doing the processing. So this is not for, again,
not for email or word processing, but actually working on the GIS. That
way we can put the imagery up in one side so you can actually see all of
the polygons, the parcels whatever data on the other. So in doing it using,
we still have the big large monitors not flat panels. And we looked at it
and we said, you know what, when we go to replace the larger monitors
with flat panels let's get enough flat panels that we can actually start to do
some dual panel on the, on the work stations not on the standard machines
that, you know, not the other machines, but on the work stations. So that's
why it's seven flat panels.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So you need 12 actually?
MR. MEDEIROS: Actually this, this plus the, the, the monitors we already have
should give us the ability to do all. We're not going to do every machine
with dual flat panels. But that's, that's, that should be fine for us. All the
new machines we are ordering are coming with flat panels.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I think you guys have explained
everything pretty, pretty thoroughly. Thank you very much. And, again,
we thank you for the job you folks do. You've been very helpful.
Whenever I ask for something your department has responded very
quickly. So thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions on the GIS
Program? Seeing none, thank you again, Mr. Medeiros. Members, we go
to Management Information Systems Program.
And joining us is
Mr. Verkerke. Managing Director?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Jacob Verkerke is the MIS head
honcho, and he's here to explain more about his program. He does have
one increase and position, one, one expansion position for an Information
Systems Analyst, and after he's finished talking about the operations he
can also talk about the CIP request. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
Program? Ms. Baisa?

Members, any questions to the MIS

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Hello. Thank you, Chair. Hi, Mr. Verkerke.
Thank you for being here. I'm looking at your equipment budget, and I'm
just wondering, you know, I know the numbers are large, but I know the
County's large, and we have a lot of offices and a lot of computers all over
the place. I'm wondering what kind of a replacement schedule you have
or a forecast of your annual needs? How far out do you have it?
MR. VERKERKE: Member Baisa, the typical life of a desktop computer is
somewhere of four to five years. Service has pretty well fixed at five
years, because the class of service that we use in our computer room the
vendor provides maintenance support for five years. After that they feel
we should replace it, so we do.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Are they on lease or do you buy them?
MR. VERKERKE: These are all purchases.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:
replace them?

What pretty much happens to them when we

MR. VERKERKE: By the time that we take them out of operations they are
typically made available to Aloha Shares Network. We are finding,
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however, that lately they prefer computers that are of slightly newer
vintage than what we make available, so then they end up with E-cycling
program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So they pretty much go to that compu swap kind
of thing that we do?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah, I know this is a constant challenge because,
you know, this equipment changes so fast and the, there are things you
need in order to do the work changes also. But the person who handles
our computers works for you?
MR. VERKERKE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No. He's in a different division under somebody
else?
MR. VERKERKE: He's under Council Services.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. Well, I was going to give kudos, but I
guess I'm going to give it to somebody else, because we have fantastic
service I have to say and everything my needs are met. So I really don't
have a whole lot of comment on what's going on in your department,
because I'm not that familiar with it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Jacob, how is the actual physical plan? I
know we made some upgrades last year, last budget cycle. Are you still
able to physically manage with all of the equipment in your room?
MR. VERKERKE: Yes, we have almost completed the renovations to the
computer room. There's some minor items that need to be addressed, but
we have, with your support, been able to improve the electrical and air
conditioning facilities. We've doubled in size. When, when we are quite
complete with all the tasks I'd like to invite you to come take a look,
because it's a vast improvement over what we had before. You may have
noticed the big green monster sitting downstairs. It's our new generator.
So we finally have backup power to the computer room. So we're in
much better shape than we have been for many years. And, and we're
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also, last year there was funding made available for us to upgrade the
network infrastructure. So we're in the middle of that effort right now and
that should be completed for the core network before the end of this fiscal
year, and then you'll see a small request for continued upgrades Phase II
in next year's budget, $80,000, which will allow us to take this upgrade all
the way into the actual remote offices on all three islands that's
appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's great. And then with regard, I know
last year you were also working on not only the backup, but I guess
redundant systems so that if one section goes down for some reason that
you would be able to not lose the data. Is that, if I recall you were
purchasing or there was some other security entity that you were dealing
with that would give you that capability outside of the County building?
MR. VERKERKE: At this point, we do not have the capability outside of the
County building to operate. The CIP project is, is meant to address that
need, and we'll talk about that in a little bit. We do have, increased our
redundancy within the computer room, so there are servers and data
storage facilities within the computer room that will allow us, if we have a
failure on a particular piece of equipment, to keep operating without data
loss or without much loss of functionality.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and I, and maybe it was that we were
having a conversation about the possibility of having, I guess, outside data
storage, that if for some reason there was a disaster and this building had
been destroyed by an earthquake or, you know, where you have additional
capability to store data, so that if a Katrina, well, a Katrina would, you
know, be highly unlikely here but, you know, there are other kinds of
disasters that could befall us.
MR. VERKERKE: In the context of, of the work on the second data center,
again, we'll talk about in a little bit, but we have, we have made contacts
with State and other county agencies, agencies in other counties to lay the
groundwork for potential co-location and sharing arrangements so that
they could bring some of their critical functionality to us. In exchange we
would like to bring some of our critical functionality to them in a
redundant fashion. So those discussions are ongoing, and we haven't
really reached the point where we have concrete agreements to do that yet.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I'm, I'm really glad to see that you're
moving in that direction though, because if Kauai had a disaster, and we
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were spared, you know, I'm sure that within governmental entities that
would be really, really important. But I, I don't really have any other
questions, Mr. Chair. I, you know, I'll just wait for the CIP, for him to
explain that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Just one question regarding
the expansion position, if you could go into a little bit more detail on that,
Mr. Verkerke?
MR. VERKERKE: Yes, Mr., Member Molina. The expansion posItIOn is
requested to improve the division's ability to provide support to the many
departments that have implemented or plan to implement information
systems, smaller scale information systems based on Microsoft sequel
server and other Microsoft products.
Our core organization wide
applications typically run on the Oracle database on, in our server room.
Smaller real specific niche applications typically are available only on the
Microsoft sequel server platform.
We have presently one staff member who's dedicated to support of that.
We're finding that we're falling short of our goals of, of providing
sufficient initial and ongoing support by MIS to these two partners to
allow them to gain the full benefit of these systems within our operations.
And for us to maintain enough redundancy and expertise in these systems
to be able to support them even when somebody's sick, or on vacation, or
something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and I noticed, I guess this is for an eight
month term or ...
MR. VERKERKE: Typically the funding is requested for an expansion position
for eight months.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Because I guess looking at your roster I
guess I don't see any Analysts IV s. You have all, like, fives and sixes, so
this would be an only, I guess, Analyst IV, I guess, yeah, at this point.
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct. We have learned over the last few years that
we have more success recruiting at a slightly lower level, and then through
in-house develop, and then training reach the level of expertise that the
departments expect from us.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Help us understand why you put your equipment in
two different categories, A and B, please.
MR. VERKERKE: Category A is typically equipment requested by the MIS
Division to support either computer room operations or ongoing lifecyc1e
support equipment replacement and upgrades. Category B is equipment
that is requested by departments tied in with expansion positions or to
support new functionality that at this point we haven't made any
equipment or software available for yet. So at some point if this is
approved through the budget process, then the following years the
replacement, and upgrade, and maintenance will show up on our normal
budget request.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So how am I to appreciate under PC
replacement, 142, I'm assuming, units for $213,000? How, how am I to
view this? This is just an MIS request or is this to take care Parks
Department, Public Works Department, Finance?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct. It's, it's part of the ongoing lifecyc1e
replacement. We stagger the replacement of the total inventory of existing
PCs throughout the department with, with a couple of exceptions over the
typical expected five year life expectancy of the equipment.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So why is this approach better for you? Because this
doesn't really help me. I don't know what department is being, having the
replacements.
MR. VERKERKE: You know, it's ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Are you planning to change cost control, so I cannot
tell where, where our money's going to go?
MR. VERKERKE: We approach the maintenance of equipment throughout the
organization based on a couple of factors: the age of the equipment, the
suitability for the need of that particular user, or department, or agency.
We also factor in a desire to keep most of the, the newer equipment in
locations that are further removed from our central operations so that we
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have the least amount of support calls for these remote offices and that we
can reduce our travel time and our distances that need to be traveled to
provide support.
So without regard of whether a piece of equipment is in department A or
B, we look at what is going to allow us to provide the best support at the
most appropriate level of equipment, and age, and functionality. So it's
hard for us, in advance, to anticipate, to say, oh, we're going to replace
everything in Parks, or we're going to replace everything in Planning. We
look more at the need, that is there and the age of the equipment and the
particular location so that we can do that in a most efficient way and have
the most consistent type of computer in a particular location whether it's
more than one department that shares that location right now.
Because you would have, for instance, in the Molokai office you have one
building where you have four or five departments share the same location.
Ifwe do it on a department basis we'd have to make five trips for that one
thing, and we apply the same approach to other offices. We found that to
be a more efficient way of doing it, then strictly looking at which
department.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That may help you operationally, Mr. Verkerke. I'm,
I'm trying to figure out how this is going to help us from an accounting
standpoint how we're going to know where, where the money is going for
certain specific requirements. So if anyone of this 142 needs some type
of work it's charged back to an account in your division -MR. VERKERKE: That's right.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --or is, or is the charge placed on, on the actual
department or division that has the computer and is doing the work?
MR. VERKERKE: No, the maintenance, replacement, and software upgrades, all
of that comes out of the MIS budget.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So we have no way of knowing the specific costs then
as what it's taking to operate and maintain them, because it's not broken
out for us? You would have to give us a breakdown out of your, your
collective pools of expenses and expenditures; is that how it works?
MR. VERKERKE: I haven't been asked for that at this point, so I'm not really
sure what the process would be.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, that's spooky then, Mr. Verkerke, because if
you cannot figure it out I don't know how we're going to get the numbers
to figure out what is it in a specific cost center.
MR. VERKERKE: I didn't say I couldn't figure it out. I just said I haven't been
asked to do that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So you could do it if we want it?
MR. VERKERKE: If it was asked, I could provide a listing of which machines
were replaced during which period of time. For us internally, that is
information that's really not contributing a whole lot to our, but we can do
it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm trying to figure out how you're going to break
down the $762,000, so I know where, where it goes, and if it's meeting its
intended appropriation use. Okay. Chairman, I'm done. I guess we got
some work to do in this area.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Thank you very much.

No, all the questions have been asked.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. So, Mr. Verkerke, whatever computer is
being replaced and whatever computer is being requested by the different
departments, do you have, like, an inventory of the total computers that
we, as a County, have?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, and that's the information that you're going to
provide us?
MR. VERKERKE: You want a copy of the inventory of the computers that are
out there now?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, that gives us a fairly good idea, because we have
a lot of departments asking for computers, and we don't know if it's
duplication or not.
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MR. VERKERKE: Okay.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Yeah, we'll put it in writing for the request.
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, the, the departments that are asking for equipment
for expansion positions are listed on those separately as we, as we show
here on that page five of our presentation. For, for replacement and
ongoing operations that's the part that's consolidated in Part A. And if
you want more specific information about that we can certainly provide
that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Okay. By departments if you could. Okay.
Members, any more questions in regards to MIS Program? If not, thank
you very much, Mr. Verkerke. And the last item that we're going to be
taking care of and, Members, we'll go up to 12:15, and we'll adjourn at
12: 15. And I think we're going to bring back the Management
Department as well as the Civil Defense Department sometime this week.
We'll check the calendar on that. So we'll go directly into the CIP
Budget. Members, there, the CIP Budget for the Department is on page
26-13 and that's the County Emergency Management ... (end of tape, side
3A) . .. and you have a sheet that was handed out earlier in regards to this
Capital Improvement Project. Ms. Morrison?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, this project has been under the over, under the
oversight of Jacob Verkerke, because it started out as a secondary data
center, and he has worked with the Police Department, Civil Defense, Fire
Department, and others on this project. So I'd appreciate having the
opportunity for him to present the land acquisition proposal.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Verkerke.
MR. VERKERKE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The handout that, that you have
describes where we are at with that effort at this point. As mentioned it
started out as an effort to address the critical need to have a secondary
location for computer operations. While we were working out the scope
of services for the consultant, the earthquake in October of 2006 drove the
point home that we're not the only ones that are in this particular
vulnerable situation.
So fairly, fairly early on in that project we invited the Police Department,
Civil Defense, Fire Department to participate in this effort and, and to look
at if there are efficiencies and synergies that we can identify in developing
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this facility. We contracted with a team of consultants that have a lot of
experience in the design and development of mission critical facilities.
During the process we developed a number of criteria that, the purpose of
the process, to take you back, was to do the site selection and to develop a
conceptual design of a facility that would meet those needs. And we
developed a number of design criteria and site selection criteria that you
see on the first page of the handout. A lot of them deal with distances,
protection against flooding, accessibility, but at the same time some
degree of separation and segregation. The design criteria for the facility
itself dealt with hardening with self sufficiency for energy and operational
needs. We wanted to design a facility that is going to support this
particular need within the County for a long time. We want it to blend in
with the environment. We wanted to apply best practices in this industry,
and I think we were successful in doing that.
Throughout the effort we learned that indeed there are many areas of
overlap between Civil Defense needs, MIS needs, Police Department's
needs, and the Fire Department's needs. So collectively we looked at the
number of locations. You see a map on the second page. The blue dots
are some of the locations that we looked at. Some of them met the criteria
better than others. We ended up, based on the selection criteria, that, that
we developed identifying the, the Waikapu Quarry area as the most
appropriate location to locate this facility. You'll see that on page three
outlined. There's a smaller parcel adjacent to the quarry itself, about six
and a half acres, previously being used by the Maui Block operations that
met better than any other, the criteria that we had set out. On page four,
you see that listed again why this site, in our opinion, is superior to any
others.
Design of the facility took us through a number of functional discussions
and in order to identify where we have shared functionality and where we
have unique functionality. The, the diagram that you see with all the
arrows and, and colored lines and everything is, is one of the techniques
that the architect that is part of this consulting team used to identify the
synergies, the opportunities for sharing facilities, operations while
maintaining the ability to support and provide their unique functional
requirements.
Based on the discussions that took place over a period of a few months
eventually a conceptual design was developed sited to this particular
location, and you see that on the next page. Some of the legend on the
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side is, is hard to read and mostly that's to identify suggested plantings
and stuff. It's really not of critical importance. But what you see on the
side there in the center on the horizontal level is, is the core of the facility,
and then you see what a police, proposed police dispatch center attached
on the left hand, and then perpendicular on the right hand side to that are
the Civil Defense offices. Below it in kind of a V-shape there's a
combination of MIS offices, the new data center, and the power,
mechanical and cooling plant. Above the center facility on a slight slanted
angle is the support facility where we would have sleeping quarters,
shower facilities, a kitchen, food and other storage to take care of the
people that would be mobilized during an emergency event. To the left of
that is the projected MPD radio shop with storage of command vehicles
for police and, and potentially other departments as well. At the very top
the kind of blank rectangle is the onsite treatment facility for wastewater.
To the left of that is a helicopter pad. In the lower left hand corner, in the
circle there, is the water storage that we project. And you see there's
ample parking for when we mobilize this facility for everybody that needs
to be involved to have parking to be there.
The facility is laid out this way so that we can provide concentric circles
of security. The UC dispatch center being at the very center of the facility
will be the most secured and most difficult to access for anybody that has
no business being there, and any other offices are arranged such that we
have at least three circles of security. So anybody accessing the facility
would need to pass through three check points or control points beyond
what's required to even access the property itself.
The facility is designed such that critical employees are not faced with
decision of whether to choose for supporting and, and insuring the safety
of their family and their responsibilities in times of crisis. So the design
you'll see there's lots of open space in between and the support facility is
designed such that we can accommodate a considerable number of family
members so that we can count on people showing up at these events. We
have learned through the events that took place in Katrina and in Florida,
when Florida got hit with three successive hurricanes in a very short time
in the central area that, those organizations that were most successful in
responding to the emergency had made prior arrangements for family
members so that people with relative piece of mind could show up and
fulfill their responsibilities.
The next page you see a cross-section of the facility. You'll see the, the
roof design and the open space design in between. It's mostly targeted at
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withstanding hurricane force winds, Hurricane V force winds. We have
made that a requirement from the beginning that the facility needs to be
able to continue operating and, and through the use of some innovative
techniques even the open space between the buildings will be relatively
calm and relatively protected. The wind will not be able to get in between
the buildings. Because as you'll see on the next computer rendering there
is a number of louvers, skylights between the buildings that can be closed
to create kind of like a turtle shell for the whole building.
During normal operations it can be opened so we can take full advantage
of cooling winds and, and natural ambient light so we don't have a facility
that is dark and needs, has high power requirements for cooling, and light,
and everything like that. So during normal operations there is, there is a
lot of consideration for energy efficient and best practices, but in time of a
hurricane or other natural events, we'll be able to kind of close up the
facility and provide protection to the workers. And as you can see in the,
in the next rendering from underneath the over, the overhead roof structure
you will see that all those louvers and skylights can be opened and closed
as needed.
The area in this last rendering doesn't show much of the planting that's,
that is intended for that area, but it should be an area that's conducive for
people to be there during a crisis for a long time and have an area to go
outside and, and relax a little bit, or, or have discussions outside away
from the crisis management facility itself. The facility itself has lots of
break out offices where different disciplines can address their particular
areas of responsibility during a crisis.
The final report for this effort is, is expected to be delivered before the end
of the month. We will have a detailed cost break out. The projection for
all this work is, at this point with all the considerations for energy
efficiency, for redundancy, for hardening, that the facility may cost around
$40 million. What you will see in the, in the next steps on the last page is
that at this point we're asking for your support to acquire the land. We
have had discussions with the property owner. We feel that those
discussions went fairly well. So we're optimistic that we can come to an
agreement. The money is also intended to cover any adjustments to the
land entitlements that will be necessary to develop this facility.
Assuming that these discussions and these negotiations will go as we
hope, then the next fiscal year we'll come back to ask for funding to do the
detailed construction design where a lot of the assumptions and concepts
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that we have developed here will be fleshed out and, and worked out in
much greater detail. And then sometime during Fiscal Year' 11 we hope
to be ready to start construction. The team has, has worked very hard on
this, and, and we feel quite confident that this is a facility that the
community can be proud of and that the community can be comfortable in
counting on allowing the, the government to address whatever needs may
arise during some time of crisis of emergency be it natural or otherwise.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you.
Members, any questions to, for
Mr. Verkerke at this time? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. I mean thank you for that
explanation, and I know something like this really has to be, I guess
people really have to understand a need for something like this more than,
you know, what we would call the rationale of having something of this
nature. You talking this is an extensive project and only in times of
disaster do you say we need it. The rest of the year or, you know, but I
think incorporating MIS and other things within that facility, dispatching,
makes it more palatable, yeah, for the public to understand that we can
move these into a safe area and have the emergency.
The question I have for you, and I, I guess I'm just concerned with the
accessibility, because this is above the old quarry area or adjacent to the
old quarry area; right, where Maui Blocks used to be, yeah?
MR. VERKERKE: It's at the lower end closest to Honoapiilani Highway.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. VERKERKE: Off the old quarry area.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Because I'm looking at this map
here, and I'm trying to pick up the road where the main highway, so that's,
this is the main highway to the far right; yeah?
MR. VERKERKE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. VERKERKE: The vertical line is the main highway.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO The main highway.

- 70-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 7, 2008

MR. VERKERKE: This is an older picture. The golf course, above the quarry, is
shown as fairly brown. This is during the time that they didn't do any
watering or maintenance on it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So now I've got a better idea.
MR. VERKERKE: The red line that you see there is kind of the outline of the
quarry itself. The darker, the browner areas to the left is where the golf
course is and the Monroe Clubhouse.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So this is, it's just above the, the
main highway, yeah. Okay. I guess the other question is I saw you're
trying to become self sufficient as far as water, sewer and all of that. I
mean kind of like being self contained so no matter what the disaster, it
will be self reliant. How does that meet with, I guess the challenge that
we face is how does that meet for the area's growth that, that will be
occurring around there, because there's projected growth in that area,
yeah. You know, homes and, and other, other businesses in that area.
Does that fit well with that?
MR. VERKERKE: I think there is very limited residential development planned
for that area. I think the general plan is ...
MS. MORRISON: The Maui Island Plan was under development at the time we
were discussing the placement of this. And as it exists right now the, the
current draft does not show residential development right there. Of
course, that's subject to changes as it goes through the three steps before it
gets finalized. But the intent was not to either integrate or be a part of that
development, but rather to, to not be obtrusive to that development. And
that's part of the reason the design phase has been done so that the, the
landowner can see that it will not negatively affect the area around it in
terms of the way that it looks.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. MORRISON: But from, from our end it's also important for it to be self
sufficient. I don't know if any of you face the prospect that we have,
every time we have an emergency or disaster here our resources are, are
relatively thin, and we, we do a great job, everybody integrates very well,
our police, and fire, and Civil Defense, and the Mayor's staff, and MIS
working together, but when the public is your responsibility you really feel
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this in those times, and you feel the need to make sure that you've done
everything you can to prepare for those operations. And that's what, what
this, this is intended to do, to give us the opportunity to phase through, it
will take some time to develop a property like this. At this stage we're
just looking at the, the land acquisition and over time we'll develop it
should it meet with your approval. But it is intended to be self sufficient
and to have the secondary backup center for the capabilities that operate
the County, all of our networks, all of that, as well as the disaster recovery
and, and those kinds of efforts.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I, I agree with you, and I think the
public has to understand why we're undertaking this.
Any time,
especially, when you get into austere times like we are now, we've got to
have a good reason for them to buy into this, and I am not one that would
oppose something of this nature. And the integration of dispatch, and
MIS, and all that really makes it a lot more utilization friendly if you want
to use that term so that people can understand that it's just not for
emergencies. It will be other essential services will be incorporated with
that. And as far as the development I wasn't referring right and adjacent.
I'm talking about lower side towards Waikapu that, you know -MS. MORRISON: I see.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --will come across. And, you know, that it
would not be right next door. I understand what the, the general plan or
the mapping has shown. So, okay, thank you very much. Thank you,
Chair for allowing me those questions.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Who's the consultant for this project please?
MR. VERKERKE: The lead consultant is a firm called EYP Mission Critical
Facilities.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Say that again please, Mr. Verkerke?
MR. VERKERKE: EYP Mission Critical Facilities. That's the name of the lead
consultants. They have engaged Chris Smith Architectural Services from
Honolulu and PBR as a land planning consultant also.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that. So for this, this year's
request you have an assessment, property assessment already completed
that you could share with us to show us what type of value the potential
site is being looked at?
MR. VERKERKE: No, we have not yet. We have based this on a range of going
sales prices for agricultural zoned land for six and a half acres. We
believe that the money requested should be sufficient to purchase the land
and to engage somebody to help us with the process of adjusting any
entitlements we need to adjust.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: How are we going to make the comparison of a real
value versus the requested value?
MR. VERKERKE: Excuse me, I, I didn't hear the question.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: How are we then to make the decision on what is real
value versus the requested amount for your, I guess, negotiated value?
MS. MORRISON: Council Chair Hokama, the process would involve, of course,
an appraisal. And once we get support for, from the Council for the
purchase of the land, then we would, of course, have to do an appraisal to
determine the value that the County would be obligated to pay, and then
work out the negotiation with the property owner. And that, and that was,
that was one of the reasons for the placement of the million dollar amount
in the budget was to include, we don't, we hope that it's not that much
money, but we, we need funds in there to also do the appraisal and to do
any entitlements should that purchase go through. So that's what that
dollar amount is for.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But the site is set?
MS. MORRISON: If we're successful with the negotiation, that's certainly the
site that we'd prefer to have of all the ones that were reviewed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So at one time I know we were looking at
Puunene National Guard.
Is there, they got their, their armory
requirements, you know, and we were assuming they were going to do
their fuel storage requirements for their chopper requirements for Air
National Guard, Army National Guard. So do they playa role in, in this
whole program the, the State's National Guard Program regarding
emergency response?
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MR. VERKERKE: It was one of the locations that we considered. It, it's
probably the location that ranked second or third off the top of my head.
I'm not really sure where it ended up. But there were features about this
particular property that caused it to be more attractive. One of the
concerns with the Puunene property is that it's still more or less within
active cane harvesting operations and dust is just murder on high tech
equipment.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Thank you for that comment. Would,
should we look at this as the number one CIP request for the year this
project? Because you're asking us to go down the road to make actually a
$46 million commitment. One for this land acquisition component, four
for your designing and preconstruction requirements, and up to at least an
estimated 40 million to construct. So before we make this big financial
commitment I need to feel comfortable that this is the right site and, and
this is the path we want to go in this point of financial times. So is, is that
a good assumption on our part please?
MS. MORRISON: It's certainly a very high pnonty for us because of the
vulnerability we face as a, as a County with our data center in particular,
and then all the other facilities that were mentioned here. That isn't to say
that other, other capital projects are not also important just in terms of
continuing our operations as a County all the way through and in terms of
each department that's requested them. This one is sort of outside that
normal operating process, because it is, represents what resources we want
to place away from this building.
So should this building become inoperable we have another site. It's
different in the sense that it's for an emergency as opposed to ongoing
operations. And I anticipate that, yes, while the, the costs are high that
they would be phased over time in order to make this become a place that
is self sufficient. That part might not happen until later on. We might get
the facility, develop it, do the design and, and have it operating for staff
from, at least part of the staff from MIS would, would operate there on a
daily basis. Then also our emergency operation center, our police dispatch
folks that are working with this, the radio, radio shop, those operations can
go on even if it weren't, what's the word, armed I guess with all the
resources that we need it to become completely self sufficient, and wind
resistant, and all those things.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So those would move upon readiness of the new site?
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MS. MORRISON: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So police would have a space gain, I guess, because
we would move dispatch out of the police facility -MS. MORRISON: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --to the new site. I'm assuming Civil Defense would
vacate their space in this building -MS. MORRISON: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --and move to the new site. Mr. Verkerke will either
relocate from another site or from this site to, to that proposed site also?
MS. MORRISON: I would anticipate that a portion of his staff would be at this
site. However, I imagine that some staff would need to be in this building
as well for ongoing operations.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this a two-three phase project for construction?
That each cell can be independent of each other or, or, or all three
components is required to be built at one time?
MS. MORRISON: Actually, we don't have that, that level of data available.
We've worked on the conceptual plan and on the land acquisition. And as
Mr. Verkerke said, toward the end of the month we're going to have more
specific information about the construction plans themselves, but I'm
anticipating that the, that it would make sense phasing it in, and I'm, I
can ... (speaking to Mr. Verkerke) ... do you have more information on that?
I can let you answer that?
MR. VERKERKE: There is a fair amount of shared infrastructure that needs to
be in place before anybody can operate from that facility. But it's been
part of the discussions that we look at how to build this out and, and
occupy this. So there is flexibility that we anticipate in how this is
occupied.
I wanted to make one slight point of clarification. Once the police
dispatch function moves into this facility the existing dispatch would then
become their fail over location. So it wouldn't necessarily be the case that
that space in the Wailuku Police Station would necessarily become
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available for others. We still need to have that redundancy. Right now the
fail over location is the EOC down here for dispatch operations, and it's,
it's really not appropriate for that. So even if this becomes our primary
facility for many of these mission critical functions we still need to be
prudent and, and maintain a fail over opportunity and not move our eggs
to another, but still single basket.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Then I can tell you what would help people like me
on this Committee. You know, I don't have a problem with supporting
redundancy, but we need to know, in some type of layout maybe format,
because we supported and, and the police got their mobile command
system. So that's another ability of, of the County to the Department of
Police to, to still function, because we have a, my understanding, a very
special piece of equipment that has great potential and capabilities to also
perform under emergency situations. And it's biggest advantage is it's, it
has mobility.
So we need to understand how all of this is connected and what role they
play so that we can put our, you know, limited resources. You know, I
don't know about the other Members but, you know, I, I'm looking at, I'm
into cut mode, because I don't how we're going to fund this whole, this
whole budget. So we need to be able to understand this request, and it's
appropriate priority, and give it it's fair consideration. And for me, you
know, I'm going to be upfront, there's a lot of projects that are being
requested this year that is the start of, for me, high end project
requirements. You're asking me for one million this year, but this is part
of an additional 44 million potential.
Okay. We've done, other departments that's asking for seed money, but
the overall commitment to the County is, is large. You look at
wastewater, you look at solid waste type of, you know, the tens to 20
millions add up quickly, and then, you know, the, the Director understands
we're looking at a large, a large budget. So for me, you know, just to be
able to understand how we got to this point, because I know down the end
it's going to be difficult to stop the project midstream after we committed
initial millions to get it to that point in time. I just need to have that level
of detail and confidence that what we are appropriating this year makes
good sense to us to potentially carry it through toward construction and
operations. So I hope you can appreciate the Committee's, I'll say the
word predicament we're in.
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MR. VERKERKE: If I may make a comment on that? The $40 million that you
have before you is not necessarily, it's hoped that it's not the total cost or
entirely County cost. We will pursue aggressively the opportunities on the
Homeland Security and other Federal programs to find sources besides the
County funding to make this facility a reality. At this point, we haven't
gone along that line far enough to be able to present it, what, what
percentage might be funded from other sources, but it's definitely going to
be one of the main priorities of this project to explore every possible
avenue of, of funding away from County funding itself.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's appreciated, Mr. Verkerke. Chairman, thank
you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. I'll try to keep it short, I
know, in light of the time constraints we have today. Just a quick
comment. I think it's something we eventually have to have in light of the
community growing and all kinds of emergencies that could possibly take
place. My, my question regarding the other site or sites was answered, I
guess Puunene. But because of the dust challenges and the damages it
could do to the equipment that makes it quite clear that we have to
consider a site like this. In, in terms of, I know I was, I was looking at
your document ... (end of tape 3B - 12:26 p.m.) ... I presume this is the
family members of I guess the response teams. Has it also been
considered as, I guess as possibly a site to provide additional shelter for
people in general in times of emergency aside, besides the response team
members as well? Is there room for that?
MR. VERKERKE: Member Molina, we, we discussed that, but we felt that
trying to be a shelter and be a mission critical emergency management
facility are, are two incompatible functions, because for the facility to
operate effectively we need to have some control over the number of
people that access the facility that need to get in and out in a secure
manner. So we felt that it, it would be better to assume that community
shelter facilities would be throughout the community where they are now,
or if there's additional need for that that would be really be outside of, of
the purview of this particular project and the function of this facility.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So in this case for the response team members
who are worried about their families they just bring them over there with
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them rather than having to spend, go back and forth between the, I guess
the facility and checking in on their homes. Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I was looking at all of the different
criteria selection, you know, for your, I guess the highest score for the
following factors and one of the things I didn't see in, in here was, is it in
a tsunami inundation zone? You know, or high hazard area. And to me if
you're going to have a facility wouldn't that be like the first criteria, that
it's not going to get wasted?
MR. VERKERKE: You're correct. It's an omission in the presentation, but it
was definitely a consideration in the selection of the sites. This particular
location is not in a tsunami inundation zone.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Okay, and there's no underlying, like
sometimes even the, the rock formations or anything underneath a facility
might make it difficult to develop. This one doesn't have any of those
issues, or it's, it's not over a burial site or anything like that?
MR. VERKERKE: It's been part of active quarry operations, so we made the
assumption to this point, not having done an exhaustive geological study
for the site, that the likelihood that we would run into problems along
those lines is not very great.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Yeah, that, that was my only concern
is that if we're going to have a system or we're going to construct
something that's armored, more or less, that we not put it in a high risk
area where there may be, like over a fault line or, you know, over old lava
tubes or something where it might collapse if there were an earthquake.
MR. VERKERKE: It, it could be part of the due diligence around the land
acquisition or in one of the early stages of, of the detail design that we
make sure that we can eliminate concerns like that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and one of the other, and, and I, I
understand where Chair Hokama's coming from, because the dollars that
we have are very precious, and they've become even more precious as
there are fewer of them. So when we're looking at the issues that we have
of moving or potentially moving out of our tsunami inundation zone core
infrastructure such as our sewage plants or, you know, other things, you
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know, I guess what we need to understand is on a scale and a priority list
where are those dollars going to be allocated and if there are things that
may place us at a greater risk, and we maybe could manage with some
kind of a mobile unit as a stop gap measure maybe it might be something
that we need to consider.
MS. MORRISON: If I might comment on, on your, your good points, Council
Member. I, I think the concerns that the Council expresses about costs
and, and about the challenges that are faced in this budget and in future
budgets are very real. I'm probably as aware of them as just about
anybody other than the Budget Director and Finance Director as we look
at this and others.
In this particular project if we purchase the land, we will have the option
to go forward. If we don't purchase the land, we are stuck where we are
right now with no options and not very good options at all in terms of our
emergency operating center and our ability to coordinate in an effective
way with State, and Federal, and other County agencies. So while it does
commit us in some ways, the timing of that commitment is up to us and up
to our ability to coordinate that with future budgets and future demands.
So I'm hopeful that we can see this as an opportunity. Especially perhaps
in the next year we may be able to negotiate a better price than we, than
we would have last year. I, I hope so anyway. But we are, we have a
great responsibility to this community, and, and as you say in all those
options that are faced with in each department, but in this case this will
offer us an option once we have the land and can consider the
development of, of a good operation center for emergencies and for the
ongoing operations of police dispatch and others.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thanks very much. I appreciate your
response.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, just a few things. I've been listening, and
I've looked through the paperwork, and I'm trying to figure out who owns
this property that we want to buy?
MR. VERKERKE: It's a hui in Honolulu. We've, we've talked with the
principal partner in that, Mr. Howard Hamamoto.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Nobody local that we know?
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MR. VERKERKE: He has very long standing ties with the community, but he's,
he's located in Honolulu right now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. It's a mystery owner. Okay. I have the
same comments as Chair Hokama. I'm very concerned about a major
purchase although I do understand the need for this. It's kind of scary to
think that something could happen, and if something happened to this
building or to some of our municipal buildings what would happen to us,
because we really don't have a safe alternative. So I guess it's something
we have to look at.
I agree totally on the Puunene site. MEO looked at it many, many times,
and we were very, very concerned about dust and dirt. For a little while
we had a facility out next to the Mill, and we spent more money and time
cleaning up than we did doing anything else. So I, I can empathize. The
other thing is I am really excited, and I think it's a wonderful
consideration to be given to the idea of accommodating the family of the
emergency response personnel. You know, having been one of those
family members, there you are at home with the children, and your
husband is saving the world, and there's nobody for you. So I, I think
that's a wonderful thing, and I totally support that. So thank you very
much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa. I just got a note from our
staff that the property is owned by Waikapu Mauka Partners.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Verkerke, was there a consideration of a site in
Kihei where the police department are considering building a station as an
alternative?
MR. VERKERKE: Mr. Chair, yes, we, we had discussions about exploring that.
One of the factors that concerned us was if we are in a situation where the
Kihei area needs to be evacuated, people responding and being mobilized
to staff the facility would be kind of swimming upstream in a mass exodus
of that particular area and there are not too many alternatives of, of
reaching that facility. We felt that another factor was that it, it's, it's
further away from many of the central core locations of, of operations that
during non-crisis we wanted this facility to be a meaningful part of County
operations, and, and it was felt that moving it that far from, from central
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operations in Wailuku would also be a bit of a detriment too. The site was
under consideration in Kihei, but scoring it on a number of factors this
facility really came out head and shoulders or this location I should say.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. In, in regards to the particular site that is
being selected is the property owner responsible to restore the quarry
surrounding the property; would you know?
MR. VERKERKE: I do not know about that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions in regards to this
particular Capital Improvement Project? If not, thank you, Mr. Verkerke,
for being here, and thank you, Managing Director, for being here. We
appreciate it. Members, that will conclude our discussion today in regards
to the Office of the Mayor, Department of Management. And we're going
to let Mr. !inuma know about when we'll take up Civil Defense. It's
going to be some time this week, but we'll take a look at the schedule, and
we'll notify you, Mr. !inuma, regarding that.
Members, we do have a meeting in Hana. I know many of us will be
driving in as well as flying in. So if you have any more comments that
you want to make at this time before I adjourn? If not, Members, when
you do come back from Hana sometime this evening, we'll reconvene this
meeting at ten o'clock tomorrow morning. Staff, comments?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, I just want to make a note the East Maui
District meeting at Helene Hall is at 6:00 p.m., I believe. There was a,
there's something in The Maui News saying that it's, the time might not be
correct, but it is at 6:00 p.m., just for the viewers in the East Maui District
at Helene Hall.
If there's no more comments or
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Thank you.
announcements to make this meeting is adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..

ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

12:38 p.m.
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